
 
May 16, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Memorandum from President Murdaugh 
 
The District Board of Trustees of 
Tallahassee Community College 
444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, FL 32304 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The following meeting Agenda and items requiring approval by the District 
Board of Trustees is provided for your use at the Monday, May 16, 2022 Board 
Meeting. 
 
This meeting will be held at the Hinson Administration Building, 444 Appleyard 
Drive, Tallahassee, FL 32304. 
 
Should you have any questions, please contact me.  
 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 
 
 



Agenda 
District Board of Trustees 

Tallahassee Community College 
444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, FL  32308 
Monday, May 16, 2022 

Business Meeting & Workshop – 2:30 PM 

CALL TO ORDER 
i. Moment of Silence
ii. Pledge of Allegiance

i. Approval of Minutes

1. Request Board approved minutes as presented.

COMMENTS 
i. Board Chair
ii. Board Members
iii. President

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

INFORMATION AND NEWS ITEMS 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

PRESENTATIONS 

NEW BUSINESS 

Approval of Consent Agenda 

The consent agenda format is an organization process for meetings that allow the governing board to focus their 
time and attention on action items that require more elaboration, information, and/or discussion.  The intent of the 
consent agenda is to support efficiency and effectiveness of the meeting. 

If a trustee has a question or plans to cast a negative vote regarding a specific recommendation, then the 
trustee/trustees need to acknowledge their intention to the Chair.  This action item will be considered in the 
regular order of business as an individual action item. 

Those action items that the trustees plan to approve without further question or discussion will remain on the 
consent agenda.  Upon the final determination of the consent agenda, a motion, second to the motion, and 
unanimous approval of the Board of Trustees is needed to approve the action items.  Upon approval of the 
consent agenda, the Board of Trustees will proceed with the remainder of the agenda. 

2. Attorney Invoice – Bryant Miller Olive (March 2022)

Authorize payment of invoice as presented.

3. Human Resource Report

Approve the report as presented and provide authorization to initiate contract
renewals for the Executive, Administrator and Managerial/Professional positions
at the appropriate time.

4. Sponsored Programs – Provider



Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

TCC Foundation 

5. TCC Foundation Update 

None required.  Report provided for information only. 

Academic Affairs 

6. Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements with Private Schools 

7. Laboratory/Course and Distance Learning Fees for 2022-2023 

That the Board approve the laboratory/course and distance learning fees as 
presented and direct staff to conduct an assessment of fees to identify opportunities 
to reduce student cost. 

8. Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements with County School Boards and Public 
Charter Schools 

That the Board approve the articulation agreements. 

Administrative Services 

9. 2021-2022 Equity Report Update 

Approve the 2021-2022 Equity Report Update as presented. 

10. Fund Analysis - April 

For information only, no Board action required. 

11. Construction Status Report 

Presented as an information item only. 

12. Architect Invoices 

Authorize payment of architectural invoices as presented. 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

WORKSHOP 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

NEXT MEETING DATE 

June 21, 2022                               Location:  Hinson Administration Building, Main Campus 

ADJOURNMENT 

 









444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 16, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
  
SUBJECT: Attorney Invoice – Bryant Miller Olive (March 2022) 

 
 
Item Description 
Request for approval to pay invoices from Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. for legal services provided 
related to collective bargaining process and related to Faculty labor relations. 
  
Overview and Background 
The College engaged Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. for representation during the collective 
bargaining process. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board of Trustees approved the agreement for these services at the September 19, 2016 
Board Meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Funding is budgeted in Fund 1, the Current Unrestricted Fund.  The current amount due is 
$300.00 for March 2022. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize payment of invoice as presented. 

 
 



Barbara K. Wills
Chief Business Officer, Vice President for Administrative 
Services
Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, Florida  32304

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

April 6, 2022
77766

25480.006

For professional services rendered in connection with Tallahassee 
Community  College - Labor and Employment - UFF Bargaining

Purchase Order No. PO-014014

Statement of Legal Services

Hours

03/02/2022 DMH Respond to UFF email 0.10

03/02/2022 DMH Draft email to client and review response 0.10

03/08/2022 DMH Review email from UFF and respond 0.10

03/08/2022 DMH Draft email to TCC and review responses 0.10

03/23/2022 DMH Review and reply to email 0.10

03/24/2022 DMH Review and reply to email from client 0.10

03/24/2022 DMH Draft email to UFF 0.10

03/30/2022 DMH Review email from Union 0.10

03/30/2022 DMH Draft email to client 0.10

03/30/2022 DMH Telephone conference with client (C. Grause) 0.10

03/30/2022 DMH Draft email to Union 0.10

03/31/2022 DMH Review email from UFF 0.10

Current Services 1.20 $300.00

Recapitulation

Timekeeper Hours Rate Total

Denise M. Heekin 1.20 $250.00 $300.00



Payments

03/30/2022 Payment ACH rec'd 3/30/22 Invoice 77397 175.00

175.00

Total Current Work $300.00

Previous Balance Due $225.00

Balance Due $525.00

Please Reference Client Number On Checks And Wire Transfers

Mail Checks to:
1545 Raymond Diehl Road, Suite 300

Tallahassee, FL  32308
850-222-8611           FEIN 59-1315801

Send wire transfers to Capital City Bank, ABA #063100688
for credit to Bryant Miller Olive, Account #2132834901

Thank you for your business

Page: 2

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

April 06, 2022
77766

25480.006
Tallahassee Community College



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 16, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
   
SUBJECT: Human Resource Report 

 
 
Item Description 
This item requests Board approval for personnel actions for the month of April and for 
authorization to initiate contract renewals for the positions of the Executive, Administrative 
and Managerial/Professional classifications. 
 
Overview and Background 
The College brings forth a request to approve appointments, separations and outside 
employment.  
 
Past Actions by the Board 
Personnel actions are taken to the District Board of Trustees monthly.  The Board has not 
addressed this item previously. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
This item is funded by the 2021-2022 Operating Budget. 
 
Recommended Action 
Approve the report as presented and provide authorization to initiate contract renewals for the 
Executive, Administrator and Managerial/Professional positions at the appropriate time. 

 



Name Department Effective Date
None to Report

Name Position Department Effective Date
Gavin Purser Maintenance Technician I Facilities April 11, 2022

Name Position Department Effective Date
None to Report

Name Position Department Effective Date
Robert McRae Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC - Cross City CI April 4, 2022
Lesley Pettit Special Education Assistant DOC - Suwanee CI April 1, 2022
Katherine Hansberry Regional Civics Coach Civics Literacy Program - Regions 1 & 3 April 18, 2022

Name Position Department Effective Date Prior Position
None to Report

Name Position Department Enrollment Date End Period 
None to Report

Name Position Department Effective Date Separation Type
Marilyn Reed Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC - Avon Park C.I. March 31, 2022 Resigned
David Hadzima Program Coordinator, Transportation and 

Logistics
Workforce Development March 31, 2022 Resigned

Susan Bulecza Director of Nursing Healthcare Professions March 31, 2022 Retired
Elain Carroll Career and Academic Advisor Student Affairs April 1, 2022 Retired
Paige Fleming Staff Assistant Workforce Development April 1, 2022 Resigned
Chana Foster Facilities Operations Superintendent Facilities April 4, 2022 Dismissed
Ivan Rivera Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC - Sumter C.I. April 6, 2022 Resigned
Bill Barnes Cashiering Coordinator Financial Aid April 8, 2022 Resigned
Gary Smiekle Systems Administrator Information Technology April 8, 2022 Resigned
Heather Hamilin Simulation Program Manager Healthcare Professions April 15, 2022 Resigned
Heather Taylor-Del Vecchio Alumni and Friends Coordinator TCC Foundation April 24, 2022 Resigned

Drop Retiree Participants (All Employees) 

Separations (All Employees) 

Re-Appointments (All Employees)

Original Appointments - Executive, Administrative, Managerial & Professional 

Original Appointments - Classified Staff

Original Appointments - Faculty 

Original Appointments -  Contracts & Grants 



Name Position Department Employer Position

Tammy Paarlberg Nursing Faculty Nursing
Tallahassee Memorial 

Hospital Registered Nurse

Jasmine Peralta Regional Civics Coach DOE, Sponsored Programs
United States Soccer 

Federation National Referee

Duane Pace Senior Learning Consultant DJJ, Sponsored Programs Allied Universal Security Regional Manager

Renee Gordon STEM Program Director Science and Mathematics

National Association for 
Community College 
Entreprenuership

Learning Program Site 
Director

Name Position Department Office Position
None to Report

Name Position Department Effective Date
Anthony Jones Associate Vice President Academic Affairs July 1, 2022

Barbara Wills Vice President and Chief Business Officer Administrative Services July 1, 2022
Bobby Jones Associate Vice President Administrative Services July 1, 2022
Bret Ingerman Vice President Information Technology July 1, 2022
Calandra Stringer Vice President and Provost Academic Affairs July 1, 2022

Candice Grause
Vice President Communications & Chief of 
Staff Communications and Marketing July 1, 2022

Gerald Jones Associate Vice President Student Affairs July 1, 2022
Heather Mitchell Vice President / Executive Director Institutional Advancement & Foundation July 1, 2022
Kimberly Moore Vice President Workforce Innovation July 1, 2022
Lei Wang Vice President Institutional Effectiveness July 1, 2022
Robert Ballard Executive Director Wakulla Environment Institute July 1, 2022
Sheri Rowland Vice President Student Affairs July 1, 2022
Steve Outlaw Executive Director Florida Public Safety Institute July 1, 2022

Name Position Department Effective Date

Bryan Hooper 
Dean of Behavioral, Social Science & 
Education Behavioral, Social Science & Education July 1, 2022

David DelRossi
Associate Dean, Business, Industry & 
Technology Business, Industry & Technology July 1, 2022

Donmetrie Clark Dean, Communications & Humanities Communications and Humanities July 1, 2022

Joey Walter Dean of Business Industry & Technology Business, Industry & Technology July 1, 2022

Kalynda Holton Associate Dean, Science & Mathematics Science & Math July 1, 2022

Outside Employment Requests (All Employees) 

Seeking to Hold Political Office Requests (All Employees)

Annual Contract Recommendations - Executive*

Annual Contract Recommendations - Administrative*



Nicholas Vick
Associate Dean, Communications & 
Humanities Communications and Humanities July 1, 2022

Sharisse Turner Dean, Transitional Studies Transitional Studies July 1, 2022

Stephanie Solomon

Executive Director, Ghazvini Center for 
Healthcare Education & Dean, Healthcare 
Professions Healthcare Education July 1, 2022

Summer Dusek
Associate Dean, Behavioral, Social 
Science & Education Behavioral, Social Science & Education July 1, 2022

Tricia Rizza Associate Dean Academic Affairs July 1, 2022

Name Position Department Effective Date

Albert Wynn
Associate Director, Wakulla Environment 
Institute Wakulla Environmental Institute July 1, 2022

Alison Fleischmann Director, Development TCC Foundation July 1, 2022
Amanda Clements Director, Communications Communications & Marketing July 1, 2022
Amy Bradbury Director, Financial Services Contracts & Grants July 1, 2022
Andrea Arce-Trigatti Director, Assessment & Accreditation Institutional Effectiveness July 1, 2022
Angela Long Chief, Engagement Officer President's Office July 1, 2022
Christen Givens Director, Recruiting and Admissions Admissions and Records July 1, 2022
Chuck Moore Athletic Director Athletics July 1, 2022

Desiree Gorman Director, Special Projects and Innovation Workforce Development July 1, 2022
Dione Geiger Associate Director, Sterling Council Contracts and Grants July 1, 2022

Don Herr
Director, Facilities, Planning and 
Construction Administrative Services July 1, 2022

Dustin Frost Director, Auxiliary Services Administrative Services July 1, 2022
Harriet Bush Director, FPSI Business Office Florida Public Safety Institute July 1, 2022
Jason Fowler Director, Information Technology Information Technology July 1, 2022

Jessica Griffin Director, Continuing Workforce Education Workforce Development July 1, 2022
Kelly Warren Executive Director, FCSAA Contracts and Grants July 1, 2022
Kristina Wiggins Director, Workday Operations Administrative Services July 1, 2022

Margaret Thompson
Director, Institutional Research and 
Planning Institutional Effectiveness July 1, 2022

Melinda Rodgers Dean of Enrollment Services Student Affairs July 1, 2022
Michael Robeck Director, Enterprise Applications Information Technology July 1, 2022
Nyla Davis Director, Human Resources Human Resources July 1, 2022
Pamela Johnston Dean, Career & Academic Planning Student Services July 1, 2022

Racquel Harrell Executive Director, Testing Data Center DOE, Sponsored Programs July 1, 2022

Renae Tolson Director, Business Process Improvement Administrative Services July 1, 2022
Renee Gordon Director, STEM Program Science and Math July 1, 2022
Robert Chaney Associate Director, FCSAA FCSAA, Sponsored Programs July 1, 2022
Ryland Moore Director, Food Services Florida Public Safety Institute July 1, 2022

Annual Contract Recommendations - Managerial & Professional*



Sam DeZerga Director, Learning Commons Academic Affairs July 1, 2022

Samantha Dunaway Director, CTE Outreach and Recruitment DOE, Sponsored Programs July 1, 2022
Steven Solomon Director, Grants and Special Projects TCC Foundation July 1, 2022
Suzi Baugh Director, Integrated Marketing Communications & Marketing July 1, 2022
Tammy Kinsey Director, Enrollment Call Center Call Center July 1, 2022

Troy Mahler Director, Student Records Admissions & Records/College Registrar July 1, 2022
Wesley Hardin Chief of Campus Police TCC Campus Police July 1, 2022
William Singletary Director, User Services Information Technology July 1, 2022
William Spiers Director, Financial Aid Financial Aid July 1, 2022

Name Position Department Effective Date
Rick Cabrera Head Coach - Men's Basketball Athletics July 1, 2022
Patti Townsend Head Coach - Women's Softball Athletics July 1, 2022

Name Position Department Effective Date Prior Position

Candice Grause
Vice President Communications & Chief of 
Staff Communications and Marketing May 1, 2022 Chief of Staff

*The renewal of annual contracts for Executive, Administrator or Managerial/Professional classifications is made in accordance with District Board of Trustees Policy #1110, Employment of Executive, 
Administrative, and Managerial/Professional Personnel. The Board has no legal obligation to renew the contract of an employee in the executive, administrative or managerial/professional class. Contract 
renewals are not effective until contracts are signed by employees.

Annual Contract Recommendations - Managerial & Professional*

Reclassifications (All Employees)



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.201.6200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 16, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
   
SUBJECT: Sponsored Programs – Provider 

 
 
Item Description 
This item requests that the Board approve the receipt of funding for the listed projects. 
 
Overview and Background 
The following are recommended for approval. 
 
I. Receipt, Amendment, Extension of Resources  
 
US Department of Education Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund - Institutional 
Support - Informational Letter  
This informational letter extended the award period from 5/19/2023 to 6/30/2023. The 
award amount remains the same. 
 
Florida Department of Corrections - Alternative Career and Technical (ACTE) Teacher 
Certification Program (TCP)- Amendment 1 
This amendment updated the terms and address for invoicing. The award amount remains 
the same. 
 
Florida Department of Corrections - Vocational Instruction - Amendments 1 - 3 
These amendments decreases the award by $270,091.58 and note administrative 
adjustments. The reduction does not impact the operations of the program as funds were 
available due to vacant positions. New award amount is $1,752,174.51.  
 
Florida Department of Education - Pathways to Career Opportunities Phase 3 – 
Amendment  4 
This amendment reallocated funding from Salaries and Benefits to Software and Materials 
and Supplies.  The award amount remains the same. 
 
 



 
Florida Department of Corrections - Compass 100 - Amendment 4 
This amendment increases the Career Development Specialist salary by $2,000, decreases 
the overall award amount by $436,165.38.  The new award amount is $1,787,330.48. 
 
 
II. Commitments, Expenditures, Contracts for Service 
None at this time. 

 
Past Actions by the Board 
US Department of Education Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund - Institutional Support 
Amendment 6 was approved at the April 2022 Board of Trustees meeting.  
 
 Florida Department of Corrections - Alternative Career and Technical (ACTE) Teacher 
Certification Program (TCP) 
Initial award was approved at the March 2022 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Department of Corrections - Vocational Instruction 
Initial award was approved at the August 2021 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Department of Education - Pathways to Career Opportunities Phase 3 
Initial award was approved at the August 2021 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
The above projects are established in Fund 2, Restricted Accounts. The total indirect 
anticipated from the new awards is ($64,205.18.) 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 16, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Heather Mitchell                                                                                                                         

Vice President for Institutional Advancement and Executive Director of the TCC 
Foundation 

   
SUBJECT: TCC Foundation Update 

 
 
Item Description 
The following is an update of the events planned and initiatives & activities undertaken by the 
TCC Foundation. 
 
Overview and Background 
Attached is a report of funds raised by the TCC Foundation to date for the current fiscal year.  
The report includes a summary of total funds received, giving summary by designated area, 
number of donors and number of gifts. 
 
The Foundation would also like to extend an invitation to DBOT members to the following 
events: 
May 26:  Blue & Gold Society Awards Luncheon, 11:45 – 1:00 p.m., WD 105 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The District Board of Trustees receives a Foundation update at every Board Meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
There are no Funding/Financial implications arising from this standard monthly report. 
 
Recommended Action 
None required.  Report provided for information only. 

 



TCC Foundation - Financial Update FY 21/22
 July - April



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 16, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Calandra Stringer, Ph.D.                                                                                                                

Vice President and Provost 
   
SUBJECT: Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements with Private Schools 

 
 
Item Description 
This item presents the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements between the College and 
private schools in TCC’s service area. 
 
Overview and Background 
Florida Statute 1007.271(24), states that postsecondary institutions must enter into 
dual enrollment articulation agreements with qualified private secondary schools in its 
geographic service area seeking to offer dual enrollment courses to its students. TCC 
has worked with the local private schools that have requested access to dual enrollment 
for their students. These agreements parallel the agreements made with public 
school boards. This year TCC is proposing agreements with Community Christian 
School, Community Leadership Academy, St. John Paul II Catholic School, Maclay 
School, North Florida Christian School, Robert F Munroe School, Savary Academy, 
Tree of Life School and Wakulla Christian School. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Dual enrollment students pay no tuition, fees. lab, or online course fees. Per the 
1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, private schools will not be invoiced for the 2022-23 
academic year. TCC will submit reimbursement requests to the Florida Department of 
Education during fall and spring semesters. The school districts are responsible for 
the cost of the instructor if the course is taught at the high school site by a TCC 
instructor.  
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board approves these agreements annually. 
 
Recommended Action 

  That the Board approve the articulation agreements. 



1 
 

2022 – 2023 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Community Christian School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Community 
Christian School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement 
shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2023.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Community Christian School 
and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 



2 
 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 



3 
 

Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2022-2023, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  
 
Step 4: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

 

Application Process for Early Admission Students 



4 
 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application. 

 

Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  

 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor. Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  

Step 4: Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  

 

Step 5: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

Step 6: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator, 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 

Step 7: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 

Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline. The request must be submitted 



5 
 

to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form. 

To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    
 
Sumer Enrollment 
Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during all sessions offered. 
Graduating high school seniors are not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be 
categorized as degree seeking college students and responsible for all instructional 
materials, tuition and fees assessed.  

 

Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

 

Testing and Alternative Placements for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility.  

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 
Writing 103 
Mathematics 114 -122 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440 24 

ENC 1101 Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 

Mathematics 440 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 ENC 1101 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


6 
 

English 17 
Mathematics 19 MAC 1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 
PSAT/NMSQT, The College Board 
Reading 24 

ENC 1101 
English 25 
Mathematics 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
PreACT 
Reading 22 

ENC 1101 
English 18 
Mathematics 22 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Through January 2020) 
Reading  83 

ENC 1101 Sentence 
Skills 

83 

Elem. 
Algebra 

72 
MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since September 2019) 
Reading 245 

ENC 1101 
Writing 245 
QAS 
(Quantitative 
Reasoning, 
Algebra, 
Stats) 

242 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

End-of-Course Assessments 
Algebra 1  
or  
Geometry 
End-of-
Course 
Assessment 

4 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

Performance in High School Coursework 
 



7 
 

HS Algebra 
 
Algebra I 
Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Liberal Arts  
 
HS Algebra 
II 
 
HS Algebra 
II Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Algebra 
 
Math for 
College  
Statistics 
 
HS Pre-
Calculus 
 
HS Trig 
 
HS Calculus 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B or 
Better 
and 3.0 
GPA MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

English IV  
 
English IV 
Honors 

B or 
Better  

and 3.0 
GPA 

ENC1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 



8 
 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading to be eligible for the dual enrollment program.  
There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


9 
 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.00 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.00 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. Students earning below a C in any course will need to consult with their guidance 
counselor before registering for the same course. 

 

 

 

 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


10 
 

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 

 

N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 



11 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 



12 
 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2022-2023 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 17th, 2022 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2022 June Express session  

High school 

July 21st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2022 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 15th, 2022 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2022 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 22nd, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

August 23rd, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 1st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 14th, 
2022 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2023. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 2nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 5th, 2022  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2023 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 12th, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 13th, 2022 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 



13 
 

January 5th, 2023 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 11th, 2023 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 10th, 2023 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 24th, 2023 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 21st, 2023 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 1st, 2023 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 3rd, 2023 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2023 May Main and May Express 
sessions 

   High school 

May 5th, 2023 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

   TCC 

 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


14 
 

Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  

1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   
 

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 

 



15 
 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 

 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 

TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 



16 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 

 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 



17 
 

for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  

 

TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 

 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business 
days of TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 



18 
 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 

 

  



19 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Community Christian School, Florida and The 
District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Community Christian School Board 

 

    
Date  Principal, Community Christian School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



20 
 

2022 – 2023 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Community Leadership Academy and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Community 
Leadership Academy, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this 
agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2023.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Community Leadership 
Academy and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 



21 
 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 



22 
 

Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2022-2023, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  
 
Step 4: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

 

Application Process for Early Admission Students 



23 
 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application. 

 

Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  

 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor. Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  

Step 4: Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  

 

Step 5: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

Step 6: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator, 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 

Step 7: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 

Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline. The request must be submitted 



24 
 

to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form. 

To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    
 
Sumer Enrollment 
Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during all sessions offered. 
Graduating high school seniors are not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be 
categorized as degree seeking college students and responsible for all instructional 
materials, tuition and fees assessed.  

 

Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

 

Testing and Alternative Placements for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility.  

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 
Writing 103 
Mathematics 114 -122 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440 24 

ENC 1101 Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 

Mathematics 440 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 ENC 1101 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


25 
 

English 17 
Mathematics 19 MAC 1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 
PSAT/NMSQT, The College Board 
Reading 24 

ENC 1101 
English 25 
Mathematics 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
PreACT 
Reading 22 

ENC 1101 
English 18 
Mathematics 22 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Through January 2020) 
Reading  83 

ENC 1101 Sentence 
Skills 

83 

Elem. 
Algebra 

72 
MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since September 2019) 
Reading 245 

ENC 1101 
Writing 245 
QAS 
(Quantitative 
Reasoning, 
Algebra, 
Stats) 

242 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

End-of-Course Assessments 
Algebra 1  
or  
Geometry 
End-of-
Course 
Assessment 

4 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

Performance in High School Coursework 
 



26 
 

HS Algebra 
 
Algebra I 
Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Liberal Arts  
 
HS Algebra 
II 
 
HS Algebra 
II Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Algebra 
 
Math for 
College  
Statistics 
 
HS Pre-
Calculus 
 
HS Trig 
 
HS Calculus 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B or 
Better 
and 3.0 
GPA MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

English IV  
 
English IV 
Honors 

B or 
Better  

and 3.0 
GPA 

ENC1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 



27 
 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading to be eligible for the dual enrollment program.  
There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


28 
 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.00 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.00 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. Students earning below a C in any course will need to consult with their guidance 
counselor before registering for the same course. 

 

 

 

 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


29 
 

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 

 

N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 



30 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 



31 
 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2022-2023 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 17th, 2022 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2022 June Express session  

High school 

July 21st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2022 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 15th, 2022 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2022 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 22nd, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

August 23rd, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 1st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 14th, 
2022 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2023. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 2nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 5th, 2022  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2023 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 12th, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 13th, 2022 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 



32 
 

January 5th, 2023 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 11th, 2023 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 10th, 2023 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 24th, 2023 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 21st, 2023 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 1st, 2023 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 3rd, 2023 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2023 May Main and May Express 
sessions 

   High school 

May 5th, 2023 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

   TCC 

 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


33 
 

Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  

6. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   
 

7. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
8. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

9. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 

 



34 
 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

10.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 

 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 

TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 



35 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 

 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 



36 
 

for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  

 

TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 

 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business 
days of TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 



37 
 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 

 

  



38 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Community Leadership Academy, Florida and 
The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Community Leadership Academy Board 

 

    
Date  Principal, Community Leadership Academy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



39 
 

2022 – 2023 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Maclay School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Maclay School, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2023.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Maclay School and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 



40 
 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 



41 
 

Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2022-2023, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  
 
Step 4: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

 

Application Process for Early Admission Students 



42 
 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application. 

 

Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  

 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor. Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  

Step 4: Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  

 

Step 5: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

Step 6: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator, 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 

Step 7: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 

Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline. The request must be submitted 



43 
 

to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form. 

To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    
 
Sumer Enrollment 
Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during all sessions offered. 
Graduating high school seniors are not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be 
categorized as degree seeking college students and responsible for all instructional 
materials, tuition and fees assessed.  

 

Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

 

Testing and Alternative Placements for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility.  

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 
Writing 103 
Mathematics 114 -122 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440 24 

ENC 1101 Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 

Mathematics 440 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 ENC 1101 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


44 
 

English 17 
Mathematics 19 MAC 1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 
PSAT/NMSQT, The College Board 
Reading 24 

ENC 1101 
English 25 
Mathematics 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
PreACT 
Reading 22 

ENC 1101 
English 18 
Mathematics 22 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Through January 2020) 
Reading  83 

ENC 1101 Sentence 
Skills 

83 

Elem. 
Algebra 

72 
MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since September 2019) 
Reading 245 

ENC 1101 
Writing 245 
QAS 
(Quantitative 
Reasoning, 
Algebra, 
Stats) 

242 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

End-of-Course Assessments 
Algebra 1  
or  
Geometry 
End-of-
Course 
Assessment 

4 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

Performance in High School Coursework 
 



45 
 

HS Algebra 
 
Algebra I 
Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Liberal Arts  
 
HS Algebra 
II 
 
HS Algebra 
II Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Algebra 
 
Math for 
College  
Statistics 
 
HS Pre-
Calculus 
 
HS Trig 
 
HS Calculus 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B or 
Better 
and 3.0 
GPA MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

English IV  
 
English IV 
Honors 

B or 
Better  

and 3.0 
GPA 

ENC1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 



46 
 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading to be eligible for the dual enrollment program.  
There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


47 
 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.00 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.00 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. Students earning below a C in any course will need to consult with their guidance 
counselor before registering for the same course. 

 

 

 

 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


48 
 

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 

 

N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 



49 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 



50 
 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2022-2023 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 17th, 2022 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2022 June Express session  

High school 

July 21st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2022 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 15th, 2022 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2022 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 22nd, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

August 23rd, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 1st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 14th, 
2022 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2023. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 2nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 5th, 2022  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2023 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 12th, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 13th, 2022 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 



51 
 

January 5th, 2023 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 11th, 2023 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 10th, 2023 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 24th, 2023 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 21st, 2023 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 1st, 2023 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 3rd, 2023 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2023 May Main and May Express 
sessions 

   High school 

May 5th, 2023 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

   TCC 

 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


52 
 

Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  

11. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   
 

12. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
13. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

14. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 

 



53 
 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

15.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 

 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 

TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 



54 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 

 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 



55 
 

for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  

 

TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 

 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business 
days of TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 



56 
 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 

 

  



57 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Maclay School, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Maclay School Board 

 

    
Date  Principal, Maclay School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



58 
 

2022 – 2023 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

North Florida Christian School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of North Florida 
Christian School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement 
shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2023.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of North Florida Christian School 
and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 



59 
 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 



60 
 

Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2022-2023, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  
 
Step 4: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

 

Application Process for Early Admission Students 



61 
 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application. 

 

Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  

 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor. Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  

Step 4: Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  

 

Step 5: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

Step 6: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator, 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 

Step 7: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 

Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline. The request must be submitted 



62 
 

to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form. 

To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    
 
Sumer Enrollment 
Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during all sessions offered. 
Graduating high school seniors are not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be 
categorized as degree seeking college students and responsible for all instructional 
materials, tuition and fees assessed.  

 

Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

 

Testing and Alternative Placements for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility.  

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 
Writing 103 
Mathematics 114 -122 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440 24 

ENC 1101 Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 

Mathematics 440 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 ENC 1101 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


63 
 

English 17 
Mathematics 19 MAC 1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 
PSAT/NMSQT, The College Board 
Reading 24 

ENC 1101 
English 25 
Mathematics 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
PreACT 
Reading 22 

ENC 1101 
English 18 
Mathematics 22 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Through January 2020) 
Reading  83 

ENC 1101 Sentence 
Skills 

83 

Elem. 
Algebra 

72 
MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since September 2019) 
Reading 245 

ENC 1101 
Writing 245 
QAS 
(Quantitative 
Reasoning, 
Algebra, 
Stats) 

242 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

End-of-Course Assessments 
Algebra 1  
or  
Geometry 
End-of-
Course 
Assessment 

4 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

Performance in High School Coursework 
 



64 
 

HS Algebra 
 
Algebra I 
Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Liberal Arts  
 
HS Algebra 
II 
 
HS Algebra 
II Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Algebra 
 
Math for 
College  
Statistics 
 
HS Pre-
Calculus 
 
HS Trig 
 
HS Calculus 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B or 
Better 
and 3.0 
GPA MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

English IV  
 
English IV 
Honors 

B or 
Better  

and 3.0 
GPA 

ENC1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 



65 
 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading to be eligible for the dual enrollment program.  
There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


66 
 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.00 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.00 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. Students earning below a C in any course will need to consult with their guidance 
counselor before registering for the same course. 

 

 

 

 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


67 
 

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 

 

N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 



68 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 



69 
 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2022-2023 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 17th, 2022 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2022 June Express session  

High school 

July 21st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2022 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 15th, 2022 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2022 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 22nd, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

August 23rd, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 1st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 14th, 
2022 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2023. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 2nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 5th, 2022  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2023 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 12th, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 13th, 2022 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 



70 
 

January 5th, 2023 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 11th, 2023 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 10th, 2023 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 24th, 2023 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 21st, 2023 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 1st, 2023 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 3rd, 2023 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2023 May Main and May Express 
sessions 

   High school 

May 5th, 2023 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

   TCC 

 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


71 
 

Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  

16. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   
 

17. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
18. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

19. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 

 



72 
 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

20.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 

 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 

TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 



73 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 

 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 



74 
 

for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  

 

TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 

 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business 
days of TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 



75 
 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 

 

  



76 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of North Florida Christian School, Florida and 
The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, North Florida Christian School Board 

 

    
Date  Principal, North Florida Christian School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



77 
 

2022 – 2023 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Robert F Munroe School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Robert F Munroe 
School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall 
commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2023.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Robert F Munroe and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 



78 
 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 



79 
 

Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2022-2023, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  
 
Step 4: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

 

Application Process for Early Admission Students 



80 
 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application. 

 

Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  

 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor. Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  

Step 4: Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  

 

Step 5: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

Step 6: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator, 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 

Step 7: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 

Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline. The request must be submitted 



81 
 

to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form. 

To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    
 
Sumer Enrollment 
Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during all sessions offered. 
Graduating high school seniors are not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be 
categorized as degree seeking college students and responsible for all instructional 
materials, tuition and fees assessed.  

 

Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

 

Testing and Alternative Placements for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility.  

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 
Writing 103 
Mathematics 114 -122 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440 24 

ENC 1101 Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 

Mathematics 440 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 ENC 1101 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


82 
 

English 17 
Mathematics 19 MAC 1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 
PSAT/NMSQT, The College Board 
Reading 24 

ENC 1101 
English 25 
Mathematics 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
PreACT 
Reading 22 

ENC 1101 
English 18 
Mathematics 22 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Through January 2020) 
Reading  83 

ENC 1101 Sentence 
Skills 

83 

Elem. 
Algebra 

72 
MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since September 2019) 
Reading 245 

ENC 1101 
Writing 245 
QAS 
(Quantitative 
Reasoning, 
Algebra, 
Stats) 

242 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

End-of-Course Assessments 
Algebra 1  
or  
Geometry 
End-of-
Course 
Assessment 

4 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

Performance in High School Coursework 
 



83 
 

HS Algebra 
 
Algebra I 
Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Liberal Arts  
 
HS Algebra 
II 
 
HS Algebra 
II Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Algebra 
 
Math for 
College  
Statistics 
 
HS Pre-
Calculus 
 
HS Trig 
 
HS Calculus 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B or 
Better 
and 3.0 
GPA MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

English IV  
 
English IV 
Honors 

B or 
Better  

and 3.0 
GPA 

ENC1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 



84 
 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading to be eligible for the dual enrollment program.  
There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


85 
 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.00 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.00 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. Students earning below a C in any course will need to consult with their guidance 
counselor before registering for the same course. 

 

 

 

 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


86 
 

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 

 

N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 



87 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 



88 
 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2022-2023 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 17th, 2022 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2022 June Express session  

High school 

July 21st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2022 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 15th, 2022 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2022 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 22nd, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

August 23rd, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 1st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 14th, 
2022 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2023. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 2nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 5th, 2022  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2023 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 12th, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 13th, 2022 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 



89 
 

January 5th, 2023 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 11th, 2023 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 10th, 2023 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 24th, 2023 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 21st, 2023 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 1st, 2023 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 3rd, 2023 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2023 May Main and May Express 
sessions 

   High school 

May 5th, 2023 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

   TCC 

 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


90 
 

Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  

21. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   
 

22. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
23. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

24. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 

 



91 
 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

25.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 
 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 

 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 



92 
 

TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 

 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 



93 
 

increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  

 

TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 

 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business 
days of TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  

 



94 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 
 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 

 

  



95 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Robert F Munroe School, Florida and The 
District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Robert F Munroe School Board 

 

    
Date  Principal, Robert F Munroe School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



96 
 

2022 – 2023 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Savary Academy and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Savary Academy, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2023.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Savary Academy and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 



97 
 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 



98 
 

Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2022-2023, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  
 
Step 4: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

 

Application Process for Early Admission Students 



99 
 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application. 

 

Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  

 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor. Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  

Step 4: Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  

 

Step 5: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

Step 6: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator, 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 

Step 7: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 

Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline. The request must be submitted 



100 
 

to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form. 

To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    
 
Sumer Enrollment 
Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during all sessions offered. 
Graduating high school seniors are not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be 
categorized as degree seeking college students and responsible for all instructional 
materials, tuition and fees assessed.  

 

Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

 

Testing and Alternative Placements for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility.  

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 
Writing 103 
Mathematics 114 -122 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440 24 

ENC 1101 Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 

Mathematics 440 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 ENC 1101 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


101 
 

English 17 
Mathematics 19 MAC 1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 
PSAT/NMSQT, The College Board 
Reading 24 

ENC 1101 
English 25 
Mathematics 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
PreACT 
Reading 22 

ENC 1101 
English 18 
Mathematics 22 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Through January 2020) 
Reading  83 

ENC 1101 Sentence 
Skills 

83 

Elem. 
Algebra 

72 
MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since September 2019) 
Reading 245 

ENC 1101 
Writing 245 
QAS 
(Quantitative 
Reasoning, 
Algebra, 
Stats) 

242 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

End-of-Course Assessments 
Algebra 1  
or  
Geometry 
End-of-
Course 
Assessment 

4 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

Performance in High School Coursework 
 



102 
 

HS Algebra 
 
Algebra I 
Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Liberal Arts  
 
HS Algebra 
II 
 
HS Algebra 
II Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Algebra 
 
Math for 
College  
Statistics 
 
HS Pre-
Calculus 
 
HS Trig 
 
HS Calculus 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B or 
Better 
and 3.0 
GPA MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

English IV  
 
English IV 
Honors 

B or 
Better  

and 3.0 
GPA 

ENC1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 



103 
 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading to be eligible for the dual enrollment program.  
There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


104 
 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.00 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.00 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. Students earning below a C in any course will need to consult with their guidance 
counselor before registering for the same course. 

 

 

 

 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


105 
 

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 

 

N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 



106 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 



107 
 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2022-2023 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 17th, 2022 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2022 June Express session  

High school 

July 21st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2022 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 15th, 2022 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2022 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 22nd, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

August 23rd, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 1st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 14th, 
2022 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2023. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 2nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 5th, 2022  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2023 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 12th, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 13th, 2022 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 



108 
 

January 5th, 2023 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 11th, 2023 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 10th, 2023 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 24th, 2023 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 21st, 2023 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 1st, 2023 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 3rd, 2023 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2023 May Main and May Express 
sessions 

   High school 

May 5th, 2023 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

   TCC 

 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


109 
 

Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  

26. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   
 

27. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
28. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

29. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 

 



110 
 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

30.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 

 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 

TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 



111 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 

 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 



112 
 

for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  

 

TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 

 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business 
days of TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 



113 
 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 

 

  



114 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Savary Academy, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Savary Academy Board 

 

    
Date  Principal, Savary Academy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



115 
 

2022 – 2023 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

St. John Paul II Catholic School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of  St. John Paul II 
Catholic School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement 
shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2023.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of St. John Paul II Catholic School 
and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 



116 
 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 



117 
 

Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2022-2023, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  
 
Step 4: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

 

Application Process for Early Admission Students 



118 
 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application. 

 

Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  

 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor. Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  

Step 4: Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  

 

Step 5: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

Step 6: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator, 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 

Step 7: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 

Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline. The request must be submitted 



119 
 

to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form. 

To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    
 
Sumer Enrollment 
Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during all sessions offered. 
Graduating high school seniors are not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be 
categorized as degree seeking college students and responsible for all instructional 
materials, tuition and fees assessed.  

 

Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

 

Testing and Alternative Placements for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility.  

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 
Writing 103 
Mathematics 114 -122 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440 24 

ENC 1101 Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 

Mathematics 440 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 ENC 1101 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


120 
 

English 17 
Mathematics 19 MAC 1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 
PSAT/NMSQT, The College Board 
Reading 24 

ENC 1101 
English 25 
Mathematics 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
PreACT 
Reading 22 

ENC 1101 
English 18 
Mathematics 22 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Through January 2020) 
Reading  83 

ENC 1101 Sentence 
Skills 

83 

Elem. 
Algebra 

72 
MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since September 2019) 
Reading 245 

ENC 1101 
Writing 245 
QAS 
(Quantitative 
Reasoning, 
Algebra, 
Stats) 

242 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

End-of-Course Assessments 
Algebra 1  
or  
Geometry 
End-of-
Course 
Assessment 

4 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

Performance in High School Coursework 
 



121 
 

HS Algebra 
 
Algebra I 
Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Liberal Arts  
 
HS Algebra 
II 
 
HS Algebra 
II Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Algebra 
 
Math for 
College  
Statistics 
 
HS Pre-
Calculus 
 
HS Trig 
 
HS Calculus 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B or 
Better 
and 3.0 
GPA MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

English IV  
 
English IV 
Honors 

B or 
Better  

and 3.0 
GPA 

ENC1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 



122 
 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading to be eligible for the dual enrollment program.  
There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


123 
 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.00 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.00 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. Students earning below a C in any course will need to consult with their guidance 
counselor before registering for the same course. 

 

 

 

 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


124 
 

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 

 

N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 



125 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 



126 
 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2022-2023 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 17th, 2022 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2022 June Express session  

High school 

July 21st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2022 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 15th, 2022 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2022 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 22nd, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

August 23rd, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 1st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 14th, 
2022 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2023. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 2nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 5th, 2022  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2023 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 12th, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 13th, 2022 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 



127 
 

January 5th, 2023 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 11th, 2023 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 10th, 2023 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 24th, 2023 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 21st, 2023 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 1st, 2023 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 3rd, 2023 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2023 May Main and May Express 
sessions 

   High school 

May 5th, 2023 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

   TCC 

 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


128 
 

Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  

31. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   
 

32. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
33. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

34. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 

 



129 
 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

35.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 

 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 

TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 



130 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 

 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 



131 
 

for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  

 

TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 

 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business 
days of TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 



132 
 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 

 

  



133 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of St. John Paul II Catholic School, Florida and 
The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, St. John Paul II Catholic School Board 

 

    
Date  Principal, St. John Paul II Catholic School 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



134 
 

2022 – 2023 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Tree of Life School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Tree of Life School, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2023.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Tree of Life School and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 



135 
 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 



136 
 

Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2022-2023, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  
 
Step 4: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

 

Application Process for Early Admission Students 



137 
 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application. 

 

Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  

 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor. Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  

Step 4: Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  

 

Step 5: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

Step 6: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator, 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 

Step 7: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 

Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline. The request must be submitted 



138 
 

to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form. 

To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    
 
Sumer Enrollment 
Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during all sessions offered. 
Graduating high school seniors are not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be 
categorized as degree seeking college students and responsible for all instructional 
materials, tuition and fees assessed.  

 

Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

 

Testing and Alternative Placements for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility.  

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 
Writing 103 
Mathematics 114 -122 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440 24 

ENC 1101 Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 

Mathematics 440 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 ENC 1101 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


139 
 

English 17 
Mathematics 19 MAC 1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 
PSAT/NMSQT, The College Board 
Reading 24 

ENC 1101 
English 25 
Mathematics 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
PreACT 
Reading 22 

ENC 1101 
English 18 
Mathematics 22 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Through January 2020) 
Reading  83 

ENC 1101 Sentence 
Skills 

83 

Elem. 
Algebra 

72 
MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since September 2019) 
Reading 245 

ENC 1101 
Writing 245 
QAS 
(Quantitative 
Reasoning, 
Algebra, 
Stats) 

242 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

End-of-Course Assessments 
Algebra 1  
or  
Geometry 
End-of-
Course 
Assessment 

4 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

Performance in High School Coursework 
 



140 
 

HS Algebra 
 
Algebra I 
Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Liberal Arts  
 
HS Algebra 
II 
 
HS Algebra 
II Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Algebra 
 
Math for 
College  
Statistics 
 
HS Pre-
Calculus 
 
HS Trig 
 
HS Calculus 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B or 
Better 
and 3.0 
GPA MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

English IV  
 
English IV 
Honors 

B or 
Better  

and 3.0 
GPA 

ENC1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 



141 
 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading to be eligible for the dual enrollment program.  
There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


142 
 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.00 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.00 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. Students earning below a C in any course will need to consult with their guidance 
counselor before registering for the same course. 

 

 

 

 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


143 
 

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 

 

N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 



144 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 



145 
 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2022-2023 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 17th, 2022 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2022 June Express session  

High school 

July 21st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2022 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 15th, 2022 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2022 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 22nd, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

August 23rd, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 1st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 14th, 
2022 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2023. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 2nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 5th, 2022  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2023 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 12th, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 13th, 2022 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 



146 
 

January 5th, 2023 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 11th, 2023 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 10th, 2023 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 24th, 2023 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 21st, 2023 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 1st, 2023 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 3rd, 2023 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2023 May Main and May Express 
sessions 

   High school 

May 5th, 2023 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

   TCC 

 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


147 
 

Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  

36. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   
 

37. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
38. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

39. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 

 



148 
 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

40.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 

 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 

TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 



149 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 

 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 



150 
 

for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  

 

TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 

 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business 
days of TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  

 
 
 
 



151 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 
 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 

 

  



152 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Tree of Life School, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tree of Life School Board 

 

    
Date  Principal, Tree of Life School 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



153 
 

2022 – 2023 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Wakulla Christian School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Wakulla Christian 
School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall 
commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2023.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Wakulla Christian School and 
the President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 



154 
 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 



155 
 

Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2022-2023, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  
 
Step 4: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

 

Application Process for Early Admission Students 



156 
 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application. 

 

Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  

 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor. Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  

Step 4: Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  

 

Step 5: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

Step 6: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator, 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 

Step 7: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 

Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline. The request must be submitted 



157 
 

to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form. 

To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    
 
Sumer Enrollment 
Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during all sessions offered. 
Graduating high school seniors are not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be 
categorized as degree seeking college students and responsible for all instructional 
materials, tuition and fees assessed.  

 

Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

 

Testing and Alternative Placements for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility.  

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 
Writing 103 
Mathematics 114 -122 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440 24 

ENC 1101 Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 

Mathematics 440 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 ENC 1101 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


158 
 

English 17 
Mathematics 19 MAC 1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 
PSAT/NMSQT, The College Board 
Reading 24 

ENC 1101 
English 25 
Mathematics 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
PreACT 
Reading 22 

ENC 1101 
English 18 
Mathematics 22 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Through January 2020) 
Reading  83 

ENC 1101 Sentence 
Skills 

83 

Elem. 
Algebra 

72 
MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since September 2019) 
Reading 245 

ENC 1101 
Writing 245 
QAS 
(Quantitative 
Reasoning, 
Algebra, 
Stats) 

242 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

End-of-Course Assessments 
Algebra 1  
or  
Geometry 
End-of-
Course 
Assessment 

4 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

Performance in High School Coursework 
 



159 
 

HS Algebra 
 
Algebra I 
Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Liberal Arts  
 
HS Algebra 
II 
 
HS Algebra 
II Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Algebra 
 
Math for 
College  
Statistics 
 
HS Pre-
Calculus 
 
HS Trig 
 
HS Calculus 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B or 
Better 
and 3.0 
GPA MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

English IV  
 
English IV 
Honors 

B or 
Better  

and 3.0 
GPA 

ENC1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 



160 
 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading to be eligible for the dual enrollment program.  
There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


161 
 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.00 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.00 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. Students earning below a C in any course will need to consult with their guidance 
counselor before registering for the same course. 

 

 

 

 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


162 
 

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 

 

N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 



163 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 



164 
 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2022-2023 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 17th, 2022 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2022 June Express session  

High school 

July 21st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2022 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 15th, 2022 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2022 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 22nd, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

August 23rd, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 1st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 14th, 
2022 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2023. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 2nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 5th, 2022  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2023 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 12th, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 13th, 2022 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 



165 
 

January 5th, 2023 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 11th, 2023 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 10th, 2023 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 24th, 2023 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 21st, 2023 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 1st, 2023 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 3rd, 2023 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2023 May Main and May Express 
sessions 

   High school 

May 5th, 2023 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

   TCC 

 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


166 
 

Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  

41. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   
 

42. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
43. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

44. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 

 



167 
 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

45.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 

 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 

TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 



168 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TCC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course 
taken. The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials 
through the TCC Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 

 

TCC will use the funds received from the Dual Enrollment Scholarship Program to 
enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual enrollment participation, 
increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the dual enrollment 
program. TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 



169 
 

for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  

 

TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 

 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 
Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 
2022-23 academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business 
days of TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 



170 
 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 

 

  



171 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Wakulla Christian School, Florida and The 
District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Wakulla Christian School Board 

 

    
Date  Principal, Wakulla Christian School 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 16, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Calandra Stringer, Ph.D.                                                                                                                

Vice President and Provost 
   
SUBJECT: Laboratory/Course and Distance Learning Fees for 2022-2023 

 
 
Item Description 
This item references the proposed laboratory/course and distance learning fees for 2022-
2023. 
 
Overview and Background 
Florida Statues 1009.22(9) and 1009.23(12) state that each Florida College System institution 
board of trustees is authorized to establish user fees such as laboratory fees, 
duplicating/photocopying fees, testing fees, etc. State Board Rule 6A-14.054 also states that 
each board of trustees may establish user fees in addition to tuition fees for services and incur 
costs. Such user fees shall not exceed the cost of the goods or services provided and shall 
only be charged to student receiving those goods or services. User fees are different from the 
state authorized fees that are charged per student per credit hour such as a financial aid fee, 
capital improvement fee, student activity fee, and technology fee. 
 
At TCC, laboratory/course fees are assessed to students who are enrolled in classes that 
because of their nature, require special funding not provided by regular tuition. Examples of 
those items include but are not limited to the following: specialized instructional software and 
equipment, instructional videos, industry certification exams, and liability insurance. 
 
TCC has a total of 177 laboratory/course fees of which 10% are being decreased or 
removed, 56% are unchanged, and 34% are being increased. 
 
The collection and expenditure of fees are audited on a regular basis by the auditor general’s 
office. Additionally, TCC annually reviews all fees to ensure that the cost does not exceed the 
amount necessary to offset the cost of the items, which are consumed in the course of the 
student’s instructional activities. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
The fees to be charged are visible to students in the course schedule. The College’s budget 
for the 2022-2023 year will incorporate collection of fees approved by the Board. 



 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board approves these fees annually. 
 
Recommended Action 
That the Board approve the laboratory/course and distance learning fees as presented and direct 
staff to conduct an assessment of fees to identify opportunities to reduce student cost. 
 

 



Laboratory Fees Decreased or Removed

Division Course ID Course Name
21-22 

Amount

Requested 
Amount for 22-

23 Comments
BIT CET 1610 Switching, Routing, and Wireless Essentials $150.00 $10.00
BIT CET 2615 Enterprise Networking, Security, and Automation $150.00 $10.00

CH FRE 1120 Elementary French I $6.00 $0.00
CH FRE 1121 Elementary French II $6.00 $0.00
CH GER 1120 Elementary German $6.00 $0.00
CH GER 1121 Elementary German II $6.00 $0.00
CH SPN 1120 Elementary Spanish I $6.00 $0.00
CH SPN 1121 Elementary Spanish $6.00 $0.00
CH SPN 2220 Intermediate Spanish $6.00 $0.00
FPSI CJK 0031 First Aid for Criminal Justice Officers $97.00 $85.00
FPSI FFP 0031 Firefighter II $800.00 $442.00
HCP NUR 1421C Reproductive Health $183.58 $178.00
HCP NUR 2350C Pediatric Health $153.09 $138.17
HCP RTE 2411 Radiographic Image Analysis I $74.00 $0.00
WD ACR 0001 	Air Conditioning, Refrigeration and Heating 

Assistant
$160.00 $155.00

WD ACR 0012 Air Conditioning, Refrigeration and Heating 
Mechanic 1

$235.00 $155.00

WD ACR 0013 Air Conditioning, Refrigeration and Heating 
Mechanic 2

$235.00 $160.40

WD ACR 0044 Air Conditioning, Refrigeration and Heating 
Mechanic Technician

$260.00 $124.00

Laboratory Fees Maintained

Division Course ID Course Name
21-22 

Amount

Requested 
Amount for 22-

23 Comments
Distance Learning Fee $10.00 $10.00 Fee per credit hour

BIT ACG 2450 Computer Accounting $20.00 $20.00
BIT CGS 1060 Computer and Internet Literacy $25.00 $25.00
BIT CTS 1220C Microsoft Specialist :Word $25.00 $25.00
BIT CTS 1230C Microsoft Specialist: Power Point $25.00 $25.00
BIT CTS 1760C Microsoft Specialist: Outlook $25.00 $25.00
BIT CTS 2225C Microsoft Specialist: Excel $25.00 $25.00
BIT CTS 2401C Microsoft Specialist: Access $25.00 $25.00
BIT EGN 1111C Introduction to Engineering Graphics $40.00 $40.00
BIT EGN 2112C Computer Application in Drafting and Design $40.00 $40.00
BIT ETD 1320 Introduction to AutoCAD $40.00 $40.00
BIT ETD 2340 Advanced AutoCAD $40.00 $40.00

1



BIT ETD 2390 3D AutoCAD/REVIT $40.00 $40.00
BIT ETM 2315C Hydraulics and Pneumatics $15.00 $15.00
BIT ETS 1511C Motors and Controls $15.00 $15.00
BIT GRA 2103C Computer Based Design I $10.00 $10.00
BIT SUR 2390 GIS Application $24.00 $24.00
CH PGY 1800C Digital Photography $44.00 $44.00
FPSI CJD 0199 Emergency Medical Dispatcher $44.00 $44.00
FPSI CJD 0448 First Academy Responder First Responder $172.00 $172.00
FPSI CJD 0520 Public Safety Telecommunications $102.00 $102.00
FPSI CJK 0002 Introduction to Law Enforcement $5.00 $5.00
FPSI CJK 0016 Communication $5.00 $5.00
FPSI CJK 0018 Legal $5.00 $5.00
FPSI CJK 0019 Interviewing and Report Writing $5.00 $5.00
FPSI CJK 0021 Serving Your Community $5.00 $5.00
FPSI CJK 0063 Fundamentals of Patrol $5.00 $5.00
FPSI CJK 0072 Crimes Against Persons $5.00 $5.00
FPSI CJK 0073 Crimes Involving Property and Society $5.00 $5.00
FPSI CJK 0079 Crime Scene Follow-up Investigations $5.00 $5.00
FPSI CJK 0093 Critical Incidents $5.00 $5.00
FPSI CJK 0281 Criminal Justice Officer Physical Fitness Training $133.00 $127.00

FPSI CJK 0340 Officer Wellness & Physical Abilities $112.00 $112.00
FPSI CJK 0400 Traffic Incidents $5.00 $5.00
FPSI CJK 0401 Traffic Stops $5.00 $5.00
FPSI CJK 0402 Traffic Crash Investigations $5.00 $5.00
FPSI CJK 0403 DUI Traffic Stops $5.00 $5.00
FPSI CJT 0801 Armed Private Security $110.00 $110.00
FPSI CJT 0803 Private Security Officer $55.00 $55.00
FPSI CWE 0003 Application Based Scenario (NO WEB ASSIST) $50.00 $50.00

FPSI CWE 0003 FPSI State Exam Review (NO WEB ASSIST) $50.00 $50.00

FPSI FFP 0010 Firefighter I $611.00 $611.00
HCP DEH 2701L Community Dental Health Lab $0.00 $0.00
HCP DES 2100L Dental Materials Lab $160.00 $160.00
HCP EMS 1059C First Responder $73.00 $73.00
HCP EMS 1119 EMT Lecture $30.00 $30.00
HCP EMS 1119L EMT Lab $51.46 $51.46
HCP EMS 1431L EMT Clinical $17.50 $17.50
HCP EMS 2603 Paramedic 1 Lecture $85.00 $85.00
HCP EMS 2603L Paramedic 1 Lab $127.04 $127.04
HCP EMS 2604L Paramedic 2 Lab $96.48 $96.48
HCP EMS 2605 Paramedic 3 Lecture $191.50 $191.50
HCP EMS 2605L Paramedic 3 Lab $102.48 $102.48
HCP EMS 2666L Paramedic 1 Clinical $17.50 $17.50
HCP RET 1026L Fundamentals in Respiratory Care Lab $104.00 $103.83

2



HCP RET 1874L Clinical Practice I $41.00 $40.10
HCP RET 2264L Advanced Procedures in Respiratory Care I Lab $24.00 $23.40

HCP RET 2265L Advanced Procedures in Respiratory Care II Lab $24.00 $23.48

HCP RET 2714L Pediatrics and Neonatology Lab $39.00 $39.44
HCP RET 2876L Clinical Practice III $14.00 $13.28
HCP RET 2877L Clinical Practice IV $35.00 $32.75
HCP RET 2878L Clinical Practice V $191.00 $192.58
HCP RET 2936 Topics in Respiratory Care $50.00 $50.00
HCP RTE 1804 Clinical Education I $17.50 $17.50
HCP RTE 1814 Clinical Education II $17.50 $17.50
HCP RTE 1824 Clinical Education III $17.50 $17.50
HCP RTE 2834 Clinical Education IV $17.50 $17.50
HCP RTE 2844 Clinical Education V $17.50 $17.50
HCP RTE 2854 Clinical Education VI $17.50 $17.50
SM BSC 1005L Introduction to Biological Sciences $28.00 $28.00
SM BSC 1084C Human Biology: Essentials of Anatomy and 

Physiology
$35.00 $35.00

SM BSC 2010L Biology for Science Majors Laboratory I $23.00 $23.00
SM BSC 2011L Biology for Science Majors Laboratory II $31.00 $31.00
SM BSC 2085L Anatomy and Physiology I Laboratory $14.00 $14.00
SM BSC 2086L Anatomy and Physiology Laboratory II $18.00 $18.00
SM CHM 1030L Chemistry for Allied Health Sciences Laboratory $30.00 $30.00

SM CHM 1045 General Chemistry I $25.00 $25.00
SM CHM 1045L General Chemistry Laboratory I $20.00 $20.00
SM CHM 1046 General Chemistry II $25.00 $25.00
SM CHM 1046L General Chemistry Laboratory II $49.00 $49.00
SM CHM 2210L Organic Chemistry I Laboratory $110.00 $110.00
SM CHM 2211L Organic Chemistry II Laboratory $106.00 $106.00
SM ESC 1000L Earth and Its Environment Laboratory $14.00 $14.00
SM MAC 1114 Precalculus Trigonometry $25.00 $25.00
SM MAC 1140 Precalculus Algebra $25.00 $25.00
SM MCB 2004L Microbiology Laboratory $51.00 $51.00
SM MGF 1106 Liberal Arts I $25.00 $25.00
SM PHY 1053L Elementary College Physics Laboratory I $32.00 $32.00
SM PHY 1054L Elementary Physics Laboratory II $33.00 $33.00
SM PHY 2048L General Physics Laboratory I $28.00 $28.00
SM PHY 2049L General Physics Laboratory II $31.00 $31.00
SM STA 2122 Introduction to Applied Statistics $25.00 $25.00
WD CTS 0018 Cybersecurity Associate $415.00 $415.00
WD OTA 0041 Front Desk Specialist $45.00 $45.00
WD OTA 0651 Medical Administrative Specialist $240.00 $240.00
WD PMT 0022 Machinist Operator $235.00 $235.00
WD PMT 0024 Machinist Setup Operator $332.00 $332.00

3



WD PMT 0025 Machinist $335.00 $335.00
WD PMT 0026 CNC Production Technician 1 $417.00 $417.00
WD PMT 0027 CNC Production Technician 2 $235.00 $235.00

Laboratory Fees Increased

Division Course ID Course Name
21-22 

Amount

Requested 
Amount for 22-

23 Comments
BIT CET 1600 Introduction to Networks $0.00 $10.00 Cisco's NetAcademy Software
BIT CET 2620 The Internet of Things $0.00 $10.00 Cisco's NetAcademy Software
BIT CIS 2352 Ethical Hacking $0.00 $40.00 Subscription for the TryHackMe online platform to practice through 

short, gamified real-world labs
BIT COP 1000 Programming Concepts $0.00 $25.00 Software for the CodeLab to practice coding and receive immediate 

feedback
BIT CTS 2123 Network Defense and Counter Measures $0.00 $40.00 Subscription for the TryHackMe online platform to practice through 

short, gamified real-world labs
BIT CTS 2381 Computer Hacker Forensic Investigator $0.00 $40.00 Subscription for the TryHackMe online platform to practice through 

short, gamified real-world labs
BIT ECO 2013 Principles of Economics: Macro $0.00 $20.00 Subscription for Study Edge
BIT ECO 2023 Principles of Economics: Micro $0.00 $20.00 Subscription for Study Edge
FPSI CJK 0020 Law Enforcement Vehicle Operations $177.00 $239.00 Increase in instructional materials
FPSI CJK 0040 Criminal Justice Firearms $379.00 $450.00 Increase in instructional materials
FPSI CJK 0051 Criminal Justice Defensive Tactics $18.00 $119.00 Increase in instructional materials
FPSI CJK 0096 Criminal Justice Officer Physical Fitness 

Training/Law Enforcement
$221.00 $223.00 Increase in instructional materials

FPSI CJK 0260 Introduction to Correctional Probation $8.00 $11.00 Increase in instructional materials
FPSI CJK 0264 Legal Foundations for Correctional Probation 

Officers
$8.00 $11.00 Increase in instructional materials

FPSI CJK 0265 Communications $8.00 $11.00 Increase in instructional materials
FPSI CJK 0266 Intake and Orientation $8.00 $11.00 Increase in instructional materials
FPSI CJK 0267 Caseload Management for Correctional 

Probation
$8.00 $11.00 Increase in instructional materials

FPSI CJK 0268 Supervision of Offenders $8.00 $11.00 Increase in instructional materials
FPSI CJK 0269 Field Supervision $8.00 $11.00 Increase in instructional materials
FPSI CJK 0300 Introduction to Correction $5.00 $9.00 Increase in instructional materials
FPSI CJK 0305 Communications $5.00 $9.00 Increase in instructional materials
FPSI CJK 0310 Officer Safety $5.00 $9.00 Increase in instructional materials
FPSI CJK 0315 Facilities & Equipment $5.00 $9.00 Increase in instructional materials
FPSI CJK 0320 Intake & Release $5.00 $9.00 Increase in instructional materials
FPSI CJK 0325 Supervising in a Correctional Facility $5.00 $9.00 Increase in instructional materials
FPSI CJK 0330 Supervising Special Populations $5.00 $9.00 Increase in instructional materials
FPSI CJK 0335 Responding to Incidents & Emergencies $5.00 $9.00 Increase in instructional materials
FPSI CJK 0421 Conducted Electrical Weapon/Dart-Firing Stun 

Gun
$22.00 $66.00 Increase in instructional materials

4



HCP DEA 1030L Dental Assisting Preclinic Lab $55.00 $62.00 Increase in lab supplies
HCP DEA 1805L Clinic Practice and Procedures Lab $63.00 $91.00 Increase in lab supplies
HCP DEA 1855L Clinic Practice and Procedures II Lab $33.00 $57.00 Increase in lab supplies
HCP DEA 2832C Expanded Functions 1 $28.00 $33.00 Increase in lab supplies
HCP DEA 2833C Expanded Functions II $116.00 $137.00 Increase in lab supplies
HCP DEH 1002L Dental Hygiene Preclinic Lab $54.00 $107.00 Increase in lab supplies
HCP DEH 1800L Dental Hygiene I Clinic $0.00 $55.00 Increase in lab supplies
HCP DEH 1802L Dental Hygiene II Clinic $45.00 $154.00 Increase in lab supplies
HCP DEH 2602L Periodontology Lab $0.00 $73.00 Increase in lab supplies
HCP DEH 2804L Dental Hygiene III Clinic $2.00 $111.00 Increase in lab supplies and models
HCP DES 1200L Dental Radiology Lab $12.00 $30.00 Increase in lab supplies
HCP NUR 1021C Nursing Process 1 $300.63 $400.00 Increase in lab supplies and HURST software exam review
HCP NUR 1241C Nursing Process 2 $262.70 $370.00 Increase in lab supplies and HURST software exam review
HCP NUR 2243C Nursing Process 3 $258.53 $360.00 Increase in lab supplies and HURST software exam review
HCP NUR 2818C Nursing Process 4 $265.06 $370.00 Increase in lab supplies and HURST software exam review
HCP RET 1875L Clinical Practice II $24.00 $29.00 Increase in lab supplies
SM MAC 1105 College Algebra $25.00 $45.00 Subscription for Study Edge and Lumen Learning
SM MAC 1105C College Algebra with co-requisite $0.00 $45.00 Subscription for Study Edge and Lumen Learning
SM MAT 1033 Intermediate Algebra $25.00 $45.00 Subscription for Study Edge and Lumen Learning
WD ACR 0000 	Air Conditioning, Refrigeration and Heating 

Helper
$430.00 $455.00 Increase in lab supplies

WD CTS 0019 Information Security Manager $245.00 $252.00 Increase in CompTIA Security+ Certification Exam
WD ETI 0450 Industrial Machinery Maintenance Assistant $573.00 $963.00 Increase in liability insurance, OSHA 1926 Safety Card, supplies, 

subscription to NCCER certification system
WD ETI 0456 Machinery Maintenance Mechanic $246.00 $271.00 Increase in supplies
WD OTA 0040 Information Technology Assistant $318.00 $380.00 Increase supplies and Microsoft Office Specialist Certification
WD OTA 0631 Medical Office Technologist $79.00 $90.00 Increase in supplies
WD PMT 0020 Machinist Helper $403.00 $482.00 Increase in liability insurance, OSHA 1926 Safety Card, supplies, NIMS 

Certification Exam
WD PMT 0070 Welder, Assistant 1 $463.00 $918.00 Increase in liability insurance, OSHA 1926 Safety Card, supplies, 

subscription to NCCER certification system
WD PMT 0071 Welder, Assistant 2 $425.00 $635.00 Increase in supplies and  Certification Exam
WD PMT 0072 Welder, SMAW 1 $385.00 $635.00 Increase in supplies; NCCER and AWS Certification Exam
WD PMT 0073 Welder, SMAW 2 $350.00 $635.00 Increase in supplies and subscription to NCCER Certification Exam

WD PMT 0074 Welder $500.00 $1,934.00 Increase in supplies and subscription to NCCER Certification System

WD TRA 0080 Tractor Trailer Truck Driver $1,602.00 $2,165.00 Increase in instructional materials

5



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 16, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Calandra Stringer, Ph.D.                                                                                                                

Vice President and Provost 
   
SUBJECT: Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements with County School Boards and Public 

Charter Schools 
 
 
Item Description 
This item presents the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements between the College and 
each of the three districts in the Tallahassee Community College service district for annual 
approval as required by Florida law. This items also includes agreements with the public 
charter schools in our service district. 
 
Overview and Background 
In compliance with Florida Statute 1007.271(4), the members of the Articulation Councils of 
three districts in the Tallahassee Community College service district for annual approval as 
required by Florida law. This item also includes agreements with the public charter schools in 
our service district. 
 
The agreements identify College and School District responsibilities for informing students 
and parents about dual enrollment; they address faculty qualifications for teaching; they 
define college readiness scores and high school and college GPA requirements as well as 
procedures for exceptions; they identify maximum and minimum course loads; they specify 
responsibilities for testing and record keeping; and they include other procedures and 
timelines. 
 
This item includes the following charter schools: Crossroads Academy, Florida A&M 
University Developmental Research School and Florida State University School.  
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Dual enrollment students pay no tuition, fees, lab, or online course fees. The school districts 
pay the standard rate per credit hour, $71.98, for students taking courses on TCC's campus.  
This also includes online courses. The school districts also pay for the cost of the instructor if 
the course is taught at the high school site by a TCC instructor. The school districts are not 



charged tuition for summer enrollments. Also, school districts do not pay tuition for students 
who take courses on the high school campus. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board approves these agreements annually. 
 
Recommended Action 

That the Board approve the articulation agreements. 
 
 

 



1 
 

2022 – 2023 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Crossroad Academy Charter School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Crossroad 
Academy Charter School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this 
agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2023.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Crossroad Academy Charter 
School and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 



2 
 

with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 



3 
 

exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2022-2023, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for Early Admission Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application. 

 

Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  

 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor. Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  

 

Step 4: Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  

 

Step 5: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 



4 
 

Step 6: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator, 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 

Step 7: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 

Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline. The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  

 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    
 
Sumer Enrollment 
Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during all sessions offered. 
Graduating high school seniors are not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be 
categorized as degree seeking college students and responsible for all instructional 
materials, tuition and fees assessed. 
 

Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


5 
 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

 
Testing and Alternative Placements for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility.  
 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 
Writing 103 
Mathematics 114 -122 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440 24 

ENC 1101 Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 

Mathematics 440 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 
English 17 
Mathematics 19 MAC 1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 
PSAT/NMSQT, The College Board 
Reading 24 

ENC 1101 
English 25 
Mathematics 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
PreACT 
Reading 22 

ENC 1101 
English 18 
Mathematics 22 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Through January 2020) 



6 
 

Reading  83 
ENC 1101 Sentence 

Skills 
83 

Elem. 
Algebra 

72 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since September 2019) 
Reading 245 

ENC 1101 
Writing 245 
QAS 
(Quantitative 
Reasoning, 
Algebra, 
Stats) 

242 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

End-of-Course Assessments 
Algebra 1  
or  
Geometry 
End-of-
Course 
Assessment 

4 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

Performance in High School Coursework 
 
HS Algebra 
 
Algebra I 
Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Liberal Arts  
 
HS Algebra 
II 
 
HS Algebra 
II Honors  
 

 
 
 
 
 

B or 
Better 
and 3.0 
GPA 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 



7 
 

Math for 
College 
Algebra 
 
Math for 
College  
Statistics 
 
HS Pre-
Calculus 
 
HS Trig 
 
HS Calculus 
English IV  
 
English IV 
Honors 

B or 
Better  

and 3.0 
GPA 

ENC1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 



8 
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


9 
 

 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
 
 
 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 
courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


10 
 

the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 

 

N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 



11 
 

successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2022-2023 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 



12 
 

Due Date Activity Responsible 
Party 

June 17th, 2022 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2022 B session  

High school 

July 21st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2022 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 15th, 2022 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2022 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 22nd, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

August 23rd, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 1st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 14th, 
2022 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2023. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 2nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 5th, 2022  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2023 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 12th, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 13th, 2022 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 5th, 2023 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 11th, 2023 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 10th, 2023 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 



13 
 

March 24th, 2023 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 21st, 2023 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 1st, 2023 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 3rd, 2023 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2023 A and C sessions 

   High school 

May 5th, 2023 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 

 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  

1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   
 

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


14 
 

each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  



15 
 

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 

 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 

TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 



16 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and 
Spring semester.  Textbooks will be provided by the College during the Summer terms.   

 

Textbooks purchased by the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board 
as specified in Section 1007.271 (17), F.S. TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the 
cost of textbooks and materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations 
for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be 
covered by TCC.  The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with 
disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School 
Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2022-2023 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 

TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2023 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 

 

TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 



17 
 

promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  

 

TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 

 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 

 

A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 
that student is not included in the main session invoice. 



18 
 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 
 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   

 

TCC provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 
Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, 
E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and 
Spelling accommodations.   

 

 

  



19 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Crossroad Academy Charter School, Florida 
and The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors 
  Crossroad Academy Charter School Board 
 

    
Date  Principal, Crossroad Academy Charter School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



20 
 

2022 – 2023 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

FAMU Developmental Research School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and Florida A&M University Developmental 
Research School, hereinafter referred to as the School.  The term of this agreement shall 
commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2023.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board or designee of FAMU 
Developmental Research School and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 



21 
 

with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 



22 
 

exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2022-2023, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for Early Admission Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application. 

 

Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  

 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor. Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  

 

Step 4: Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  

 

Step 5: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 



23 
 

Step 6: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator, 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 

Step 7: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 

Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline. The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  

 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    
 
Sumer Enrollment 
Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during all sessions offered. 
Graduating high school seniors are not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be 
categorized as degree seeking college students and responsible for all instructional 
materials, tuition and fees assessed. 
 

Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


24 
 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

Testing and Alternative Placements for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility.  
 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 
Writing 103 
Mathematics 114 -122 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440 24 

ENC 1101 Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 

Mathematics 440 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 
English 17 
Mathematics 19 MAC 1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 
PSAT/NMSQT, The College Board 
Reading 24 

ENC 1101 
English 25 
Mathematics 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
PreACT 
Reading 22 

ENC 1101 
English 18 
Mathematics 22 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Through January 2020) 
Reading  83 ENC 1101 



25 
 

Sentence 
Skills 

83 

Elem. 
Algebra 

72 
MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since September 2019) 
Reading 245 

ENC 1101 
Writing 245 
QAS 
(Quantitative 
Reasoning, 
Algebra, 
Stats) 

242 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

End-of-Course Assessments 
Algebra 1  
or  
Geometry 
End-of-
Course 
Assessment 

4 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

Performance in High School Coursework 
 
HS Algebra 
 
Algebra I 
Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Liberal Arts  
 
HS Algebra 
II 
 
HS Algebra 
II Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Algebra 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B or 
Better 
and 3.0 
GPA 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 



26 
 

Math for 
College  
Statistics 
 
HS Pre-
Calculus 
 
HS Trig 
 
HS Calculus 
English IV  
 
English IV 
Honors 

B or 
Better  

and 3.0 
GPA 

ENC1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 



27 
 

Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 

Early Admission Eligibility 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


28 
 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 

 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


29 
 

N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 



30 
 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2022-2023 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 17th, 2022 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2022 B session  

High school 

July 21st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2022 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 15th, 2022 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2022 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 



31 
 

August 22nd, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

August 23rd, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 1st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 14th, 
2022 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2023. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 2nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 5th, 2022  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2023 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 12th, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 13th, 2022 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 5th, 2023 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 11th, 2023 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 10th, 2023 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 24th, 2023 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 21st, 2023 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 1st, 2023 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 3rd, 2023 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2023 A and C sessions 

   High school 

May 5th, 2023 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 

 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 



32 
 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  

6. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   
 

7. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
8. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

9. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


33 
 

scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

10.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School regarding determination of student eligibility before 
participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the 
dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point 
average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred 
to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the 
program.  



34 
 

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 

 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure 
that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 

TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School is 
prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the 
high school transcript. 

 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School during both the Fall and Spring 



35 
 

semester.  Textbooks will be provided by the College during the Summer terms.  
Textbooks purchased by the School shall remain the property of the School as specified 
in Section 1007.271 (17), F.S. TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of 
textbooks and materials to the School. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual 
enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by 
TCC.  The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities 
taking courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School is required to pay the standard tuition rate per credit 
hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 

TCC will not charge tuition to the School for Summer 2023 dual enrollment students. 
TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 

 

TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School’s payment of tuition to 
TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment program in 
order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students for transition 
to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and to track and 
provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high school faculty 
and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 
occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by 
college faculty, the School must reimburse TCC for the costs associated with the 
proportion of salary and benefits.  



36 
 

 

TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School instructors 
for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

TCC will invoice the School for financial obligations within 21 business days of TCC’s 
Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 

 

A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 
that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 



37 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 

 

  



38 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of FAMU Developmental Research School, 
Florida and The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have 
adopted this agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief 
executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation 
Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Board of Trustees or Designee 
  Florida A&M University Developmental Research School School  
 

    
Date  Superintendent, Florida A&M University Developmental Research 

School  

 

 

 

  



39 
 

2022 – 2023 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Florida State University School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Florida State 
University School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement 
shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2023.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Florida State University School 
and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 



40 
 

with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 



41 
 

exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2022-2023, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for Early Admission Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application. 

 

Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  

 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor. Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  

 

Step 4: Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  

 

Step 5: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 



42 
 

Step 6: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator, 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 

Step 7: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 

Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline. The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  

 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    
 
Sumer Enrollment 
Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during all sessions offered. 
Graduating high school seniors are not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be 
categorized as degree seeking college students and responsible for all instructional 
materials, tuition and fees assessed. 
 

Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


43 
 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

 
Testing and Alternative Placements for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility.  
 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 
Writing 103 
Mathematics 114 -122 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440 24 

ENC 1101 Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 

Mathematics 440 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 
English 17 
Mathematics 19 MAC 1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 
PSAT/NMSQT, The College Board 
Reading 24 

ENC 1101 
English 25 
Mathematics 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
PreACT 
Reading 22 

ENC 1101 
English 18 
Mathematics 22 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Through January 2020) 



44 
 

Reading  83 
ENC 1101 Sentence 

Skills 
83 

Elem. 
Algebra 

72 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since September 2019) 
Reading 245 

ENC 1101 
Writing 245 
QAS 
(Quantitative 
Reasoning, 
Algebra, 
Stats) 

242 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

End-of-Course Assessments 
Algebra 1  
or  
Geometry 
End-of-
Course 
Assessment 

4 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

Performance in High School Coursework 
 
HS Algebra 
 
Algebra I 
Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Liberal Arts  
 
HS Algebra 
II 
 
HS Algebra 
II Honors  
 

 
 
 
 
 

B or 
Better 
and 3.0 
GPA 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 



45 
 

Math for 
College 
Algebra 
 
Math for 
College  
Statistics 
 
HS Pre-
Calculus 
 
HS Trig 
 
HS Calculus 
English IV  
 
English IV 
Honors 

B or 
Better  

and 3.0 
GPA 

ENC1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 



46 
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


47 
 

 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
 
 
 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 
courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


48 
 

the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 

 

N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 



49 
 

successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2022-2023 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 



50 
 

Due Date Activity Responsible 
Party 

June 17th, 2022 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2022 B session  

High school 

July 21st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2022 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 15th, 2022 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2022 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 22nd, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

August 23rd, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 1st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 14th, 
2022 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2023. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 2nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 5th, 2022  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2023 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 12th, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 13th, 2022 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 5th, 2023 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 11th, 2023 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 10th, 2023 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 



51 
 

March 24th, 2023 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 21st, 2023 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 1st, 2023 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 3rd, 2023 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2023 A and C sessions 

   High school 

May 5th, 2023 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 

 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  

11. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   
 

12. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


52 
 

each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
13. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

14. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

15.  



53 
 

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 

 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 

TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 



54 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and 
Spring semester.  Textbooks will be provided by the College during the Summer terms.   

 

Textbooks purchased by the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board 
as specified in Section 1007.271 (17), F.S. TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the 
cost of textbooks and materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations 
for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be 
covered by TCC.  The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with 
disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School 
Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2022-2023 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 

TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2023 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 

 

TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 



55 
 

promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  

 

TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 

 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 

 

A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 
that student is not included in the main session invoice. 



56 
 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 
 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   

 

TCC provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 
Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, 
E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and 
Spelling accommodations.   

 

 

  



57 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Florida State University School, Florida and 
The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors 
  Florida State University School Board 
 

    
Date  Principal, Florida State University School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



58 
 

2022 – 2023 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Gadsden County Schools and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Gadsden County, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2023.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following: Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Gadsden County and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise 
dual enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students 
to meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review, 
with the student, criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 



59 
 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours per semester) in courses that are creditable 
toward the high school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree.   Both the 
high school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each 
semester. 
 
 



60 
 

Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2022-2023, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  
 
Step 4: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

 

 



61 
 

Application Process for Early Admission Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application. 

Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor. Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  

Step 4: Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  

Step 5: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

Step 6: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator, 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 

Step 7: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline. The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form. 

To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


62 
 

 
Sumer Enrollment 
Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during all sessions offered. 
Graduating high school seniors are not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be 
categorized as degree seeking college students and responsible for all instructional 
materials, tuition and fees assessed.  
 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

Testing and Alternative Placements for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility.  
 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 
Writing 103 
Mathematics 114 -122 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440 24 

ENC 1101 Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 

Mathematics 440 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 
English 17 
Mathematics 19 MAC 1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 



63 
 

PSAT/NMSQT, The College Board 
Reading 24 

ENC 1101 
English 25 
Mathematics 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
PreACT 
Reading 22 

ENC 1101 
English 18 
Mathematics 22 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Through January 2020) 
Reading  83 

ENC 1101 Sentence 
Skills 

83 

Elem. 
Algebra 

72 
MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since September 2019) 
Reading 245 

ENC 1101 
Writing 245 
QAS 
(Quantitative 
Reasoning, 
Algebra, 
Stats) 

242 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

End-of-Course Assessments 
Algebra 1  
or  
Geometry 
End-of-
Course 
Assessment 

4 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

Performance in High School Coursework 
 
HS Algebra 
 
Algebra I 
Honors  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 



64 
 

Math for 
College 
Liberal Arts  
 
HS Algebra 
II 
 
HS Algebra 
II Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Algebra 
 
Math for 
College  
Statistics 
 
HS Pre-
Calculus 
 
HS Trig 
 
HS Calculus 

 
 
 
 

B or 
Better 
and 3.0 
GPA 

English IV  
 
English IV 
Honors 

B or 
Better  

and 3.0 
GPA 

ENC1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 



65 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading to be eligible for the dual enrollment program.  
There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  

Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.00 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


66 
 

or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.00 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
 
 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 
courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/AcademicList.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, apart from remedial courses 
and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 
toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified 
in this agreement. 

Courses taken that are not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject 
Area Equivalency List must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement 
along with the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or 
subject area credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 

N/A 

 

https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/AcademicList.pdf
https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/7534/urlt/0107226-delist.pdf
https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/7534/urlt/0107226-delist.pdf


67 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations using the course 
syllabus which is provided to each student in each college-level course at the beginning 
of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case-by-case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee. 
 



68 
 

TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2022-2023 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 17th, 2022 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2022 June Express session  

High school 

July 21st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2022 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 15th, 2022 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2022 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 22nd, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

August 23rd, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 



69 
 

  November 1st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 14th, 
2022 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2023. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 2nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 5th, 2022  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2023 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 12th, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 13th, 2022 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 5th, 2023 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 11th, 2023 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 10th, 2023 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 24th, 2023 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 21st, 2023 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 1st, 2023 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 3rd, 2023 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2023 A and C sessions 

   High school 

May 5th, 2023 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 

 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 



70 
 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 
of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   
 

16. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   
 

17. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
18. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

19. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


71 
 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the student's taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 
 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 



72 
 

It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by TCC) when posting it to the 
high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 
 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 

TCC 
 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 
fees.   

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and Spring 
semester.  Textbooks will be provided by TCC during the Summer terms.  Textbooks purchased 
by the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S. TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and materials to 
the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with 
disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The costs of ADA 
accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school 
campus will be covered by the School Board. 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per credit 
hour to TCC for instruction taking place on TCC’s campus for dual enrolled students.  The 
approved standard tuition for FY 2022-2023 is $71.98. The rate will be charged for courses 
taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and distance learning courses.   

TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2023 dual enrollment students. 
TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in 
any term. 



73 
 

TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual 
enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the 
dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of tuition to TCC will increase the 
number of counselors available to the dual enrollment program in order to recruit more dual 
enrollment students and to help prepare students for transition to college, to counsel students in 
meta-majors and programs of study, and to track and provide feedback to students on their 
progress. TCC will also provide high school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 
occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 
faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated with the proportion of 
salary and benefits.  

TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 
high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 
consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC courses 
and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 
program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 
TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 
part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of TCC’s 
Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 

A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if that 
student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has occurred, 
there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 
 

 

 

 



74 
 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resources that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  TCC will ensure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodation for those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodation.   

TCC provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 
Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, 
E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and 
Spelling accommodations.   

  



75 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Gadsden County, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Gadsden County School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Gadsden County School District 

 

 

 

  



76 
 

2022 – 2023 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Leon County Schools and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Leon County, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2023.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following: Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Leon County and the President 
of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise 
dual enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students 
to meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review, 
with the student, criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 



77 
 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours per semester) in courses that are creditable 
toward the high school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree.   Both the 
high school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each 
semester. 
 
 



78 
 

Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2022-2023, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  
 
Step 4: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

 

 



79 
 

Application Process for Early Admission Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application. 

Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor. Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  

Step 4: Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  

Step 5: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

Step 6: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator, 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 

Step 7: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline. The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  

 

 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


80 
 

 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    
 
Sumer Enrollment 
Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during all sessions offered. 
Graduating high school seniors are not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be 
categorized as degree seeking college students and responsible for all instructional 
materials, tuition and fees assessed. 
 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

Testing and Alternative Placements for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility.  

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 
Writing 103 
Mathematics 114 -122 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440 24 

ENC 1101 Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 

Mathematics 440 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 
English 17 
Mathematics 19 MAC 1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


81 
 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 
PSAT/NMSQT, The College Board 
Reading 24 

ENC 1101 
English 25 
Mathematics 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
PreACT 
Reading 22 

ENC 1101 
English 18 
Mathematics 22 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Through January 2020) 
Reading  83 

ENC 1101 Sentence 
Skills 

83 

Elem. 
Algebra 

72 
MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since September 2019) 
Reading 245 

ENC 1101 
Writing 245 
QAS 
(Quantitative 
Reasoning, 
Algebra, 
Stats) 

242 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

End-of-Course Assessments 
Algebra 1  
or  
Geometry 
End-of-
Course 
Assessment 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 



82 
 

Performance in High School Coursework 
 
HS Algebra 
 
Algebra I 
Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Liberal Arts  
 
HS Algebra 
II 
 
HS Algebra 
II Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Algebra 
 
Math for 
College  
Statistics 
 
HS Pre-
Calculus 
 
HS Trig 
 
HS Calculus 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B or 
Better 
and 3.0 
GPA MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

English IV  
 
English IV 
Honors 

B or 
Better  

and 3.0 
GPA 

ENC1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 



83 
 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading to be eligible for the dual enrollment program.  
There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


84 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  

Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.25 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.25 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
 
 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 
courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/AcademicList.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, apart from remedial courses 
and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 
toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified 
in this agreement. 

Courses taken that are not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject 
Area Equivalency List must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement 

https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/AcademicList.pdf
https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/7534/urlt/0107226-delist.pdf
https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/7534/urlt/0107226-delist.pdf


85 
 

along with the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or 
subject area credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 

N/A 

 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations using the course 
syllabus which is provided to each student in each college-level course at the beginning 
of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 



86 
 

progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case-by-case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2022-2023 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 17th, 2022 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2022 B session  

High school 

July 21st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2022 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 15th, 2022 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 

 



87 
 

necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2022 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

August 22nd, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

August 23rd, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 1st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 14th, 
2022 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2023. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 2nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 5th, 2022  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2023 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 12th, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 13th, 2022 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 5th, 2023 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 11th, 2023 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 10th, 2023 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 24th, 2023 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 21st, 2023 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 1st, 2023 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 3rd, 2023 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2023 A and C sessions 

   High school 

May 5th, 2023 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 

 

 



88 
 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 
enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   
 

20. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   
 

21. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
22. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

23. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


89 
 

expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the student's taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 
 



90 
 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 

It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 
 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 

TCC 
 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 
fees.   

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and Spring 
semester.  Textbooks will be provided by the College during the Summer terms.  Textbooks 
purchased by the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in 
Section 1007.271 (17), F.S. TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students 
with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The costs of ADA 
accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school 
campus will be covered by the School Board. 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per credit 
hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled students.  The 
approved standard tuition for FY 2022-2023 is $71.98. The rate will be charged for courses 
taking place on TCC’s main campus and distance learning courses.   



91 
 

TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2023 dual enrollment students. 
TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in 
any term. 

TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual 
enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the 
dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of tuition to TCC will maintain  
counselors available to the dual enrollment program in order to recruit more dual enrollment 
students and to help prepare students for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors 
and programs of study, and to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will 
also provide high school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 
occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 
faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated with the proportion of 
salary and benefits.  

TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 
high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 
consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC courses 
and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 
program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 
TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 
part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of TCC’s 
Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 

A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if that 
student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has occurred, 
there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 
 



92 
 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resources that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will ensure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodation for those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodation.   

TCC provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 
Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, 
E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and 
Spelling accommodations.   

  



93 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Leon County, Florida and The District Board 
of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and caused it 
to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 
1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Leon County School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Leon County School District 

 

 

 

  



94 
 

2022 – 2023 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Wakulla County Schools and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Wakulla County, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2023.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following: Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Wakulla County and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise 
dual enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students 
to meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review, 
with the student, criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 



95 
 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours per semester) in courses that are creditable 
toward the high school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree.   Both the 
high school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each 
semester. 
 
 



96 
 

Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2022-2023, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  
 
Step 4: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

 

 



97 
 

Application Process for Early Admission Students 

Step 1: Complete TCC Online Application. 

Step 2: Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.  

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor. Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form.  

Step 4: Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  

Step 5: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

Step 6: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator, 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 

Step 7: During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline. The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  

 

 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


98 
 

 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    
 
Sumer Enrollment 
Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during all sessions offered. 
Graduating high school seniors are not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be 
categorized as degree seeking college students and responsible for all instructional 
materials, tuition and fees assessed. 
 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

Testing and Alternative Placements for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility.  

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 
Writing 103 
Mathematics 114 -122 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440 24 

ENC 1101 Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 

Mathematics 440 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 
English 17 
Mathematics 19 MAC 1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


99 
 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 
PSAT/NMSQT, The College Board 
Reading 24 

ENC 1101 
English 25 
Mathematics 24 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
PreACT 
Reading 22 

ENC 1101 
English 18 
Mathematics 22 MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 
ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Through January 2020) 
Reading  83 

ENC 1101 Sentence 
Skills 

83 

Elem. 
Algebra 

72 
MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since September 2019) 
Reading 245 

ENC 1101 
Writing 245 
QAS 
(Quantitative 
Reasoning, 
Algebra, 
Stats) 

242 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

End-of-Course Assessments 
Algebra 1  
or  
Geometry 
End-of-
Course 
Assessment 

4 

MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

Performance in High School Coursework 
 



100 
 

HS Algebra 
 
Algebra I 
Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Liberal Arts  
 
HS Algebra 
II 
 
HS Algebra 
II Honors  
 
Math for 
College 
Algebra 
 
Math for 
College  
Statistics 
 
HS Pre-
Calculus 
 
HS Trig 
 
HS Calculus 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B or 
Better 
and 3.0 
GPA MAC1105C, MAT1033, MGF1106, MGF1107 

English IV  
 
English IV 
Honors 

B or 
Better  

and 3.0 
GPA 

ENC1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 



101 
 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and/or English and Reading to be eligible for the dual enrollment program.  
There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


102 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.00 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.00 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. Students earning below a C in any course will need to consult with their guidance 
counselor before registering for the same course. 
 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
 
 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 
courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/AcademicList.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, apart from remedial courses 
and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 
toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified 
in this agreement. 

Courses taken that are not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject 
Area Equivalency List must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement 
along with the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or 
subject area credit. 

https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/AcademicList.pdf
https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/7534/urlt/0107226-delist.pdf
https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/7534/urlt/0107226-delist.pdf


103 
 

 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 

N/A 

 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations using the course 
syllabus which is provided to each student in each college-level course at the beginning 
of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 



104 
 

and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case-by-case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2022-2023 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 17th, 2022 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2022 June Express session  

High school 

July 21st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2022 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 15th, 2022 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2022 

 



105 
 

semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

August 22nd, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

August 23rd, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 1st, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 14th, 
2022 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2023. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 2nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 5th, 2022  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2023 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 12th, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 13th, 2022 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 5th, 2023 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 11th, 2023 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 10th, 2023 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2023-
2024. 

High school 

March 24th, 2023 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 21st, 2023 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 1st, 2023 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 3rd, 2023 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2023 A and C sessions 

   High school 

May 5th, 2023 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 

 

 



106 
 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 
enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   
 

24. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   
 

25. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
26. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

27. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


107 
 

expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the student's taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 
 



108 
 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 

It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 
 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 

TCC 
 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 
fees.   

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and Spring 
semester.  Textbooks will be provided by TCC during the Summer terms.  Textbooks purchased 
by the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S. TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and materials to 
the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with 
disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The costs of ADA 
accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school 
campus will be covered by the School Board. 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per credit 
hour to TCC for instruction taking place on TCC’s campus for dual enrolled students.  The 
approved standard tuition for FY 2022-2023 is $71.98. The rate will be charged for courses 
taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and distance learning courses.   



109 
 

TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2023 dual enrollment students. 
TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in 
any term. 

TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will promote dual 
enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the 
dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of tuition to TCC will increase the 
number of counselors available to the dual enrollment program in order to recruit more dual 
enrollment students and to help prepare students for transition to college, to counsel students in 
meta-majors and programs of study, and to track and provide feedback to students on their 
progress. TCC will also provide high school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 
occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 
faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated with the proportion of 
salary and benefits.  

TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 
high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 
consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC courses 
and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 
program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 
TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 
part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of TCC’s 
Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 

A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if that 
student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has occurred, 
there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 
 



110 
 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resources that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  TCC will ensure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodation for those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodation.   

TCC provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 
Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, 
E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and 
Spelling accommodations.   

  



111 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Wakulla County, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Wakulla County School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Wakulla County School District 

 

 

 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 16, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
   
SUBJECT: 2021-2022 Equity Report Update 

 
 
Item Description 
Tallahassee Community College (TCC) submits an annual Equity Report Update to the 
Florida Department of Education (FLDOE) to provide a status of the College’s Educational 
Equity Plan which documents efforts to comply with state and federal civil rights laws related 
to nondiscrimination and equal access to postsecondary education and employment. 
 
Overview and Background 
Each year TCC is required to submit an annual Equity Report Update to the FLDOE.  This 
report contains the status of the College’s policies and procedures related to equity, and their 
resulting effects and outcomes.  The Division of Administrative Services coordinates the 
completion of the annual Equity Report Update but has the support of the Division of 
Academic Affairs, Students Affairs, Institutional Effectiveness, and the Athletics Department.   
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
N/A 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
TCC’s Equity Report Update for 2020-2021 was approved by this Board on April 19, 2021.  
 
Recommended Action 
Approve the 2021-2022 Equity Report Update as presented. 
 
 

 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The Report on Athletic Program Participation Rates 
and 

Financial Support Data 
EADA Report 

 
 
 

Tallahassee Community College 
September 30, 2021 

 



 
Any coeducational institution of higher education that participates in Title IV, the federal 
student aid program, and has an intercollegiate athletics program, must comply with the 
EADA by preparing an annual report, officially called The Report on Athletic Program 
Participation Rates and Financial Support Data; more commonly known as the EADA 
Report. The EADA Report must be published each year and must be made available 
upon request to students, prospective students, and the public. A prospective student is 
defined as an individual who has contacted an eligible institution requesting information 
concerning admission to that institution.  
 
 
 

Total Institutional Undergraduate Population by Gender 
 

Number of male and female full-time undergraduate students that attended the school 
 

 Number Percentage 
Male 2,650 47% 
Female 2,957 53% 
TOTAL 5,607 100% 

 
 

Sports Teams and Participation by Gender 
 

Sport Male Female 
Baseball 30  
Basketball 15 13 
Softball 19 16 
Track and Field (Outdoor) 7 4 
Cross Country 7 5 
TOTAL 59 41 
Total Unduplicated Participants 55 40 
Percentage 57.9% 42.1% 
   
NOTES:  
 
Four males and one female who participated in cross country also participated in 
track and field (outdoor). 

 
 



Total Amount of Athletically Related Student Aid Awarded 

 
 Male Female Total 
 $547,422 $463,561 $1,010,983 
Percentage 54% 46% 100% 
 
 

Total Expenses Incurred 
 
 Male Female Total 
 $827,175 $705,832 $1,533,007 
Percentage 54% 46% 100% 
 
 

Total Revenues 
 

 Male Female Total 
 $827,175 $705,832 $1,533,007 
Percentage 54% 46% 100% 
 
 

Total Expenses By Team 
 
 Male Female Total 
Baseball $376,702   
Basketball $436,398 $352,299  
Cross Country and 
Track & Field 

$14,075 $10,365  

Softball  $343,168  
TOTAL $827,175 $705,832 $1,533,007 
Percentage 54% 46% 100% 
 
 

Total Revenues By Team 
 

 Male Female Total 
Baseball $376,702   
Basketball $436,398 $352,299  
Cross Country and 
Track & Field 

$14,075 $10,365  

Softball  $343,168  
TOTAL $827,175 $705,832 $1,533,007 
Percentage 54% 46% 100% 

 
 



Head Coaches - Men's Teams 

 Male Head Coaches Female Head Coaches 
 FT 

coach 
PT coach FT emp PT emp FT coach PT coach FT emp PT emp 

Baseball 1  1      
Basketball 1  1      
Cross Country 
and Track & Field 

 1*  1*     

TOTAL 2 1 2 1     
*- the same individual coached both the cross country and track and field teams 
 

Head Coaches - Women's Teams 
 
 Male Head Coaches Female Head Coaches 
 FT 

coach 
PT coach FT emp PT emp FT coach PT coach FT emp PT emp 

Basketball 1  1      
Cross Country 
and Track & Field 

 1*  1*     

Softball     1  1  
TOTAL 1 1 1 1 1  1  
*- the same individual coached both the cross country and track and field teams 
 

Head Coaches Salaries 
 
 Men’s Teams Women’s Teams 
Average salary $39,056 $36,024 
No. of coaches included 3 3 
Average salary per FTE $55,268 $50,977 
No. of FTE included 2.12 2.12 

 



Assistant Coaches - Men's Teams 
 
 Male Assistant Coaches Female Assistant Coaches 
 FT 

coach 
PT coach FT emp PT emp 

or 
volunteer 

FT coach PT coach FT emp PT emp 
or 

volunteer 
Baseball  4  4     
Basketball  2  2     
Cross Country & 
Track and Field 

     2  2 

TOTAL  6  6  2  2 
         
 

Assistant Coaches - Women's Teams 
 
 Male Assistant Coaches Female Assistant Coaches 
 FT 

coach 
PT coach FT emp PT emp 

or 
volunteer 

FT coach PT coach FT emp PT emp 
or 

volunteer 
Basketball  1  1  1  1 
Cross Country & 
Track and Field 

     2  2 

Softball      1  1 
TOTAL  1  1  3  3 
NOTE: The same individuals were an assistant coach for cross country and track & field. 
 

Assistant Coaches Salaries 
 
 Men’s Teams Women’s Teams 
Average salary $10,908 $11,612 
No. of coaches used to calculate 
the average salary 

6 4 

No. of volunteer coaches 2 0 
Average salary per FTE $31,166 $29,397 
No. of FTE included 2.10 1.58 
 
  
 



Tallahassee Community College 
2021-2022 Equity Update 

Executive Summary 
 
Tallahassee Community College (TCC or the College) submits an equity update report to the 
State of Florida each year. The 2021-2022 Annual Equity Update will be presented to the Board 
of Trustees on April 18, 2022, and upon approval will be signed by the Board Chair and the 
College’s President. This report provides updates on the College’s efforts to comply with Florida 
Statues related to nondiscrimination and equal access to postsecondary education and 
employment.  Updates, observations and planned strategies are addressed for the following 
equity categories: (1) Employment Equity, (2) Student Participation, and (3) Gender Equity in 
Athletics. The Florida Department of Education (FLDOE) provided three years of data (2018-
2019, 2019-2020 and 2020 - 2021) for each area. All racial/ethnic category labels reported here 
are those supplied by FLDOE. This summary highlights findings and strategies from the report. 

 
Employment Equity - Following the Department of Education, Florida College System’s 
guidance, the College initiates employment goals each year for the areas of Executive/ 
Administrative/Managerial (EAM) Staff, Instructional Staff, and Instructional Staff with 
Continuing Contract utilizing the College’s student population as its benchmark for employment 
representation. 

 
Goal Highlights: 
Executive/Administrative/Managerial (EAM) Staff - The College met its employment 
goals for all EAM categories by coming within ten percentage points of the student 
population.  

 
Instructional Staff - The College met its employment goals for all Full-Time Instructional 
Staff categories by coming within ten percentage points of the student population.  

 
Instructional Staff with Continuing Contract - The College met its employment goals 
within the Full-Time Instructional Staff with Continuing Contract categories except for the 
representation of Black female faculty. Black female faculty representation missed the 
College’s goal by 1.3%.  This was due in part to the focus on and success of increasing 
our Black female student population.  The College’s Black female student population has 
increased 2.8% over the last two reporting periods.  It should also be noted that during 
this reporting period, there were seven Continuing Contract retirements, of which two 
(28.6%) were Black females. The College will maintain its current support for Annual 
Contract faculty seeking to become Continuing Contract faculty.  This support includes, 
but is not limited to, the New Faculty Seminar Programs and training requirements 
presented through the College’s Center for Professional Enrichment.   

   
Student Participation – The following four areas of “student participation” are highlighted in the 
report: Enrollments, Completions, Success in Targeted Programs and Gender Equity in 
Athletics.  Findings and strategies are listed below by area: 

 
Enrollments - While the College’s number of FTIC students increased in 2020-2021, the 
overall Total Enrollment declined.  This overall decline in enrollment impacted the 
College’s ability to meet student enrollment goals.  The Total Enrollment of Black 
students saw a decline of .2%, with a more significant decrease in Black males (.7%).  
However, the College experienced a gain of 3.5% in decreasing or closing the gap 
between Total Enrollment of Black and White students, and the College saw an increase 
of .5% in the overall Total Enrollments of Black female students.   
 
 
 



Goal Highlights: 
The College increased Hispanic Total Enrollment by 4.2%, more than exceeding 
its goal, and closed the gap between Total Enrollment of Black and White 
students by 3.5%.  The College did not meet its goal to increase the enrollment 
of Black male students FTIC or Total Enrollment, or reduce the enrollment 
percentage gap between Black female and Black male Total Enrollment; this gap 
increased by 1.2%.  No disproportionate enrollment rates were identified when 
the enrollments of Hispanic males were compared to enrollment of Hispanic        
females.  The College will continue to focus on increasing Black male enrollment, 
and decreasing the gap between Black female and Black male Total Enrollment.  

 
Methods and Strategies:  
Existing methods and strategies to increase student enrollment in 
underrepresented areas include the following: (1) The College continues to refine 
a new onboarding experience using Admission Navigators, assigned advisers, 
enhanced communications, and the Workday Student system to help students 
complete admission requirements. (2) The College is utilizing new dashboards 
that show application and yield rates by race and ethnicity, in order to target 
additional communication and outreach to Black applicants including special 
invitations to virtual open houses and residency help sessions as well as Student 
Ambassador Call Campaigns to all Black applicants. (3) Career and Academic 
Advising has established a goal to increase the percentage of early registrations 
by Black students through the delivery of early, personalized advising 
engagements. (4) The College has resumed on-campus “TCC Preview Days” 
that host area seniors on campus as well as targeted recruitment events for the 
students that were denied admittance to FSU. (5) The College is launching a new 
program finder component to the website that will provide prospective and 
current students the full breadth and depth of the academic and workforce 
programs that the College offers. These new pages include program information, 
careers with average salaries, stackable pathways where appropriate, program 
costs, financial aid eligibility, and time to complete.  

 
Completions - In 2020-2021, the College experienced declines in the overall number of 
completions for all certificates and degrees, excluding the baccalaureate. This decline 
was evidenced across all race/ethnic categories. The College experienced percentage 
increases in Black males earning AS degrees (1.9%), Black females earning AA degrees 
(1.2%) and Black students earning certificates (3%). However, the College did not meet 
all goals in this area as outlined below. 

 
Goal Highlights: 
A.A. Degrees – The College did not meet its goal to increase the percentage of 
Black students completing A.A. degrees or its goal to increase male students 
completing A.A. degrees.  These two areas decreased by .9% and 2.5% 
respectively. The College will continue to focus on Black and male student A.A. 
degree completion. 

 
A.S. Degrees – The College met its goal of increasing the percentage of Black 
male students who complete A.S. degrees, this area experienced a 1.9% 
increase. The College did not meet its goal of increasing the percentage of Black 
female students who complete A.S. degrees by 1%; however, the College made 
positive progress as the percentage of Black female students who completed 
A.S. degrees increased by .4%. The College will continue to focus on Black male 
and Black female A.S. degree completion as well as add goals focused on 
increasing both Hispanic and male completion of A.S. degrees. 

 



Certificate Programs – The College met its goal by increasing the percentage of 
Black students completing Certificate programs by 3%. The College will continue 
to focus on Black student Certificate program completion. 

 
Methods and Strategies: 
The College continues to place a laser focus on strategies that will narrow equity 
gaps.  (1) The College hosted an Equity Collaboration Session with College 
leaders and a college-wide Equity Summit. (2) Faculty professional development 
as well as Student Affairs professional development is focused on ensuring 
equitable policies, practices, and procedures. (3) The College is now 
disaggregating student data for Academic and Student Affairs personnel with an 
equity lens and building out communication and outreach strategies targeted to 
reaching our Black students. Institutional Effectiveness personnel have designed 
dashboards that allow leaders to access key performance indicators for their 
respective areas as well as college-wide. (4) The College experienced a 
significant increase in Hispanic students.  In response to this increase, the 
College launched a new academic support program called the Hispanic Alliance 
for Talented Students (H.A.T.S), similar to the existing Black Male Achievers 
program and Sister2Sister.  (5) Survey data for course withdrawals is being 
reviewed to assess why students are withdrawing, from individual courses as 
well as the College, to determine where any additional supports are needed.  (6) 
The College is also in the design stages to roll out messaging and supports to 
demonstrate the College’s commitment to serving students who are also parents.  
(7) Career and Academic Advising in collaboration with our Academic Success 
Coaches are improving early alert interventions as well as designing a Success 
Seminar to students who experience academic difficulty.  (8) Finally, Academic 
Affairs has launched a new “Pathways to Persistence” program.  Pathways to 
Persistence is being developed as a campus-wide collaborative partnership, 
designed to create a more intentional early alert environment of student support 
that fosters self-efficacy, meaning and purpose, and a sense of belonging for 
students. 

 
Success in Targeted Programs - The College offers several programs that are 
geared towards increasing student participation in programs and courses in 
which students have been traditionally underrepresented, including, but not 
limited to, mathematics, science, computer technology, electronics, 
communications technology, engineering and career education, as required 
under §1000.05, F.S. The programs are as follows: Florida Georgia Louis Stokes 
Alliance for Minority Participation (FGLSAMP), National Science Foundation 
(NSF) S-STEM, Sister 2 Sister, and Black Male Achievers.   Each program 
provides strategies to increase participation for underrepresented students and is 
outlined in detail in the 2021-2022 Equity Report. 

 
Gender Equity in Athletics -The College continues its commitment to provide equal 
opportunities to its male and female student-athletes. Eight sports are currently offered: men’s 
and women’s basketball, baseball, softball, men's and women’s cross country, and men's and 
women's track (indoor and outdoor). Volleyball and Competitive Cheer are under consideration 
for addition to our athletic offerings. 
 

Goal Highlights: 
The College did not meet its goal for gender equity in athletics for this review period. 
Cross country and Track and Field (T&F) continues to provide the best opportunity for 
growth in female participation. The potential to add volleyball and competitive cheer will 
also be an opportunity for female participation. 

 

https://mymailtccfl.sharepoint.com/sites/P2P/Lists/Student%20Entries/PrePlans.aspx


Methods and Strategies: 
           The College is hosting multiple T&F events this Spring 2022, which will provide tools to 

help recruit female student athletes. The College is also hosting the NJCAA Cross 
Country National Championships, which gives the College national exposure for that 
sport. As the NJCAA sanctions additional sports, such as women’s flag football and 
competitive cheer, the College will continue to research the feasibility of adding 
opportunities for female participants. All participants, regardless of gender, have access 
to comparable scholarships and like resources and facilities, in all aspects: housing, 
travel accommodations, coaches, support staff, and equipment and supplies. Academic 
support resources are also available to participants from all teams. 

 



 

 

Division of Florida Colleges 
325 W. Gaines Street, Suite 1244 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400 

FCSInfo@fldoe.org 
850-245-0407 

 

 
 
 

 
 

Tallahassee Community College 
 

College Annual Equity Update 

2021-2022 

Template for Submission 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Submission Information 
Equity Officer: Renae Tolson  
Email: renae.tolson@tcc.fl.edu 
Phone: (850) 201-6074 
Date: April 29, 2022 

  
 

mailto:FCSInfo@fldoe.org


College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

1 
 

Contents 
General Information and Applicable Laws for Reporting .....................................................................2 

Part I. Description of Plan Development .............................................................................................3 

Part II. Policies and Procedures that Prohibit Discrimination ...............................................................3 

Part III. College Employment Equity Accountability Plan ......................................................................7 

Part IV. Strategies to Overcome Underrepresentation of Students .................................................... 16 

Part V. Substitution Waivers for Admissions and ............................................................................... 27 

Course Substitutions for Eligible Students with Disabilities ................................................................ 27 

Part VI. Gender Equity in Athletics .................................................................................................... 31 

Part VII. Signature Page .................................................................................................................... 34 

 

  



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

2 
 

General Information and Applicable Laws for Reporting 
 
The purpose of the College Annual Equity Update is to provide updates on efforts to comply with Florida 
Statutes related to nondiscrimination and equal access to postsecondary education and employment in 
Florida College System (FCS) institutions. The following Florida Statutes (F.S.) and implementing State 
Board of Education rules in the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) have specific requirements for the 
annual update.  
 

 Section 1000.05, F.S., the “Florida Educational Equity Act” 

 Section 1012.86, F.S., Florida College System institution employment equity accountability 
program 

 Section 1006.71, F.S., Gender equity in intercollegiate athletics 

 Implementing Rule 6A-10.041, F.A.C., Substitution for Requirements for Eligible Students with 
Disabilities at Florida Colleges and Postsecondary Career Centers 

 Implementing Rules 6A-19.001 – 6A-19.010, F.A.C., related to educational equity 
 
The Division of Florida Colleges (DFC) continues to provide certified data in Excel format on the areas of 
measurement required by statute and rule. Additionally, tables have been created and embedded in the 
template for setting goals and reflecting goal achievement. DFC encourages each college to devote 
attention to the development of effective methods and strategies for any areas of improvement 
identified in analyses. 
 
Submission of the College Annual Equity Update is due to the Florida Department of Education, Division 
of Florida Colleges by April 29, 2022. The update should be submitted by email to FCSInfo@fldoe.org. 
Colleges must submit this equity template in Word format. PDFs of the report template will not be 
accepted. Colleges may attach additional documents in PDF or Word format as appendices.  

 
DFC conducts reviews of annual college equity update reports pursuant to Rule 6A-19.010, F.A.C., 
implementing the Florida Educational Equity Act. The goals are to provide feedback for future updates, 
monitor efforts by the college to increase diversity in student participation and employment and meet 
requirements of Florida Statutes, including, but not limited to, the Florida Educational Equity Act and 
sections 1000.05, 1012.86 and 1006.71, F.S. 
 
The review includes an assessment of the college’s methods and strategies established to achieve goals 
and timelines addressing areas of underrepresentation of minorities in its academic programs, activities 
and employment. The review also includes an evaluation of submitted policies and procedures for 
compliance with state and federal civil rights laws prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, 
national origin, ethnicity, gender, marital status, age, genetic information or disability. The review may 
include comments or recommendations in areas where the college has achieved or exceeded its goals or 
in areas where there is incomplete or missing information. 
 
For the 2021-22 report, the factors DFC will identify as part of its review will be embedded after sections 
of the report and DFC will use these sections to provide feedback to colleges. These will be marked 
“Completed by Division of Florida Colleges.” Example:  

mailto:FCSInfo@fldoe.org


College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

3 
 

 
 

 
Part I. Description of Plan Development 

 
Did the college make any changes to the development of the college equity plan? Make a selection: No 
If yes, provide the following applicable updates. 

 
A list of persons, by title and organizational location, involved in the development of the plan.  
 
Response: Click here to enter text. 
 
A description of the participation of any advisory groups or persons. 
 
Response: Click here to enter text. 
 

 

Review of Part I: Description of Plan Development 
(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 

 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Did the college change the college 
equity plan? 

Select one.   

If yes, applicable updates provided? Select one.   

 

 
 

 
Part II. Policies and Procedures that Prohibit Discrimination 

 
This section relates to processes used to ensure that certain policies and procedures are current, 
accurate, in compliance and available to all students, employees and applicants as required by statute.  
 
A) Has the governing board updated the college’s approved and adopted policy of nondiscrimination? 
Make a selection: Yes If yes, provide the following applicable updates. 
 

Date of revision: January 18, 2022 



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

4 
 

Description of the revision: The College’s nondiscrimination policy received minor updates to 
existing language. 
Web link(s) to document the revision: Policy 8420 - 
https://go.boarddocs.com/fl/tcc/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=welcome#   

 
B) Has the college updated the procedures used to notify staff, students, applicants for employment and 
admission, collective bargaining units and the general public of this policy? Make a selection: No If yes, 
provide updated information. 

 
Response: Click here to enter text. 

 
C) Has the college changed the person(s) designated to coordinate the college’s compliance with section 
1000.05, F.S.; Rule 6A-19.009-.010, F.A.C.; Title IX; Section 504; or Title II? Make a selection: No If yes, 
provide the following applicable information for each updated contact. 

Name/title: Click here to enter text. 
Phone number: Click here to enter text. 
Address: Click here to enter text. 
Email address: Click here to enter text. 
Is this contact’s information available in the regular notice of nondiscrimination?  
Make a selection: Select one. 
 

D) Has the college updated the grievance or complaint procedures for use by students, applicants and 
employees who allege discrimination? Make a selection: No If yes, provide the following applicable 
updates. 

 
Date of revision: Click here to enter text. 
Description of the revision: Click here to enter text. 
Web link(s) to document the revision: Click here to enter text. 

 
E) Grievance procedures should address the following, at a minimum, as required under Rule 6A-
19.010(h), F.A.C. Confirm if the college is meeting these requirements. 
 

1) Notifications of these procedures are placed in prominent and common information sources. 
Make a selection: Yes 

 
2) Procedure(s) are designed to encourage prompt and equitable resolution of student, employee 

and applicant complaints, but do not prohibit individuals from seeking redress from other 
available sources. Make a selection: Yes 

 
3) Procedures prohibit retaliation against any person filing a complaint alleging discrimination or 

any person alleged to have committed discrimination. Make a selection: Yes 
 

 
If no, provide the college’s plan for compliance. 
Response: Click here to enter text. 

F) Have there been any revisions to nondiscrimination policies or procedures pertaining to: 

https://go.boarddocs.com/fl/tcc/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=welcome


College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

5 
 

Title IX? Yes 

Title II? Yes 

Section 504? Yes 

Nondiscrimination policies or procedures pertaining to disability 
services, including Rule 6A-10.041, F.A.C., that addresses course 
substitution requirements? 

No 

Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome/Human 
Immunodeficiency Virus (AIDS/HIV) Infectious Disease? 

Yes 

Other policies or procedures related to civil rights or 
nondiscrimination? 

No 

 

If yes, address the following for any identified policies or procedures. 

Name of the policy and/or procedure(s): Policy 1320 - Title IX Sexual Harassment 
Date of revision: February 21, 2022. 
Description of the revision: The College’s Title IX procedure was converted to College policy 
with minor updates to existing language.   
Web link(s) to document the revision: Policy 1320 - 
https://go.boarddocs.com/fl/tcc/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=welcome#  
 
Name of the policy and/or procedure(s): Policy 8420 – Equal Access/Equal Opportunity, 
Discrimination, Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful Harassment. 
Date of revision: January 18, 2022.  
Description of the revision: The College’s nondiscrimination policy received minor updates to 
existing language.  
Web link(s) to document the revision: Policy 8420 - 
https://go.boarddocs.com/fl/tcc/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=welcome#  
 
Name of the policy and/or procedure(s): Policy 8500 – Communicable Diseases 
Date of revision: January 18, 2022.  
Description of the revision: The College’s Communicable Diseases policy received minor 
updates to existing language.  
Web link(s) to document the revision: Policy 8500 -  
https://go.boarddocs.com/fl/tcc/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=welcome#  

 

  

https://go.boarddocs.com/fl/tcc/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=welcome
https://go.boarddocs.com/fl/tcc/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=welcome
https://go.boarddocs.com/fl/tcc/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=welcome


College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

6 
 

 

 
Review of Part II: Policies and Procedures that Prohibit Discrimination 

(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 
 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Have there been any updates to the 
college’s policy of nondiscrimination 
adopted by the governing board? 
 

Select one.   

If yes, applicable updates provided? Select one.   

Have there been any updates to the 
procedures utilized to notify staff, 
students, applicants for employment 
and admission, collective bargaining 
units and the general public of this 
policy?  
 

Select one.   

If yes, applicable updates provided? Select one.   

Have there been any updates to 
person(s) designated to coordinate the 
college’s compliance with section 
1000.05, F.S.; Rules 6A-19.009-.010, 
F.A.C.; Title IX; Section 504; or Title II? 
 

Select one.   

If yes, applicable updates provided? Select one.   

Have there been any updates to the 
college’s grievance or complaint 
procedures for use by students, 
applicants and employees who allege 
discrimination? 
 

Select one.   

If yes, applicable updates provided? Select one.   

Grievance procedures should address 
the following at a minimum as required 
under Rule 6A-19.010(h), F.A.C. 
 

- - - 

Notifications of these procedures 
are placed in prominent and 
common information sources. 
 
 
 
 

Select one.   



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

7 
 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Procedure(s) are designed to 
encourage prompt and equitable 
resolution of student, employee 
and applicant complaints, but do 
not prohibit individuals from 
seeking redress from other 
available sources. 
 
 

Select one.   

Procedures prohibit retaliation 
against any person filing a 
complaint alleging discrimination or 
any person alleged to have 
committed discrimination. 
 

Select one.   

If no, is a plan for compliance 
provided? 
 

Select one.   

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Part III. College Employment Equity Accountability Plan 
 

Section 1012.86, F.S., Florida College System institution employment equity accountability program, 
requires that each college include in its annual equity update a plan for increasing the representation of 
women and minorities in senior-level positions, full-time faculty positions and full-time faculty positions 
who have attained continuing contract status. The plan must include specific, measurable goals and 
objectives, specific strategies and timelines for accomplishing these goals and objectives and 
comparable national standards as provided by the Florida Department of Education.  
 

A. Data, Analysis and Benchmarks 

DFC provides colleges with employment data for the last three fall terms to evaluate employment trends 
for females and minorities in senior-level positions (also referred to as Executive/Administrative/ 
Managerial or EAM positions), full-time instructional staff and full-time instructional staff with 
continuing contract status. DFC also provides colleges with student enrollment percentages by race and 
gender to be used as the benchmark for setting employment goals, as colleges seek to reflect their 
student demographics in their employment. 
  



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

8 
 

College Full-Time Executive/Administrative/Managerial Staff  
Informed by the EMP-EAM tab, complete the following table to analyze the college’s attainment of 
annual goals and long-range goals for increasing the number of women and minorities in EAM positions.  

 

  

2020-21 
Reporting 

Year 
College 
Student 

Population  
(%) 

EAM 
Actuals  

(%) 
Fall 2020 

EAM 
Actuals  

(%) 
Fall 2021 

EAM Stated 
Goals (%) 
Fall 2021 

EAM  
Goal 
Met 
(Yes
/No) 

EAM Goals for 
Fall 2022 

Black Female 21.7% 20.7% 20.0% 
Within 10% of Student 

population Y 
Within 10% of Student 

population 

Black Male 12.1% 13.8% 13.3% 
Within 10% of Student 

population Y 
Within 10% of Student 

population 

Hispanic Female 9.0% 3.4% 0% 
Within 10% of Student 

population Y 
Within 10% of Student 

population 

Hispanic Male 8.8% 3.4% 0% 
Within 10% of Student 

population Y 
Within 10% of Student 

population 

Other Minorities 
Female 3.2% 3.4% 3.3% 

Within 10% of Student 
population Y 

Within 10% of Student 
population 

Other Minorities 
Male 2.1% 3.4% 3.3% 

Within 10% of Student 
population Y 

Within 10% of Student 
population 

White Female 22.4% 24.1% 33.3% 
Within 10% of Student 

population Y 
Within 10% of Student 

population 

White Male 20.7% 27.6% 26.7% 
Within 10% of Student 

population Y 
Within 10% of Student 

population 

Total Female 56.3% 51.7% 56.7% 
Within 10% of Student 

population Y 
Within 10% of Student 

population 

Total Male 43.7% 48.3% 43.3% 
Within 10% of Student 

population Y 
Within 10% of Student 

population 

 
Describe and evaluate strategies for addressing underrepresentation in EAM positions. 
 
Response:  The College met all goals within the EAM category by coming within ten percentage points of 
the student population.   
 

  



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

9 
 

College Full-Time Instructional Staff 
Informed by the EMP-INSTRUCTIONAL tab, complete the following table to analyze the college’s 
attainment of annual goals and long-range goals for increasing the number of women and minorities in 
full-time instructional positions.  

 

  

2020-21 
Reporting 

Year 
College 
Student 

Population  
(%) 

INST 
Actuals  

(%) 
Fall 2020 

INST 
Actuals  

(%) 
Fall 2021 

INST Stated 
Goals (%) 
Fall 2021 

INST 
Goal 
Met 
(Yes
/No) 

INST Goals for 
Fall 2022 

Black Female 21.7% 14.2% 12.9% 
Within 10% of 

Student population Y 
Within 10% of 

Student population 

Black Male 12.1% 7.8% 7.4% 
Within 10% of 

Student population Y 
Within 10% of 

Student population 

Hispanic Female 9.0% 4.4% 4.0% 
Within 10% of 

Student population Y 
Within 10% of 

Student population 

Hispanic Male 8.8% 5.4% 5.4% 
Within 10% of 

Student population Y 
Within 10% of 

Student population 

Other Minorities 
Female 3.2% 3.4% 4.0% 

Within 10% of 
Student population Y 

Within 10% of 
Student population 

Other Minorities 
Male 2.1% 0.5% 0.5% 

Within 10% of 
Student population Y 

Within 10% of 
Student population 

White Female 22.4% 42.2% 43.6% 
Within 10% of 

Student population Y 
Within 10% of 

Student population 

White Male 20.7% 22.1% 22.3% 
Within 10% of 

Student population Y 
Within 10% of 

Student population 

Total Female 56.3% 64.2% 64.4% 
Within 10% of 

Student population Y 
Within 10% of 

Student population 

Total Male 43.7% 35.8% 35.6% 
Within 10% of 

Student population Y 
Within 10% of 

Student population 

 

Describe and evaluate strategies for addressing underrepresentation in full-time instructional positions. 

 
Response: The College met all goals within the Full-Time Instructional Staff category by coming within 
ten percentage points of the student population. 
 

  



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

10 
 

College Full-Time Instructional Staff with Continuing Contract  
Informed by the EMP-CONTINUING CONTRACT tab, complete the following table to analyze the college’s 
attainment of annual goals and long-range goals for increasing the number of women and minorities in 
full-time instructional staff with continuing contract positions.  
 

  

2020-21 
Reporting 

Year 
College 
Student 

Population  
(%) 

INST-
CONT 

Actuals  
(%) 

Fall 2020 

INST-
CONT 

Actuals  
(%) 

Fall 2021 

INST-CONT Stated 
Goals (%) 
Fall 2021 

INST-
CONT 
Goal 
Met 
(Yes/
No) 

INST-CONT Goals for 
Fall 2022 

Black Female 21.7% 11.0% 10.4% 
Within 10% of 

Student population N 
Within 10% of 

Student population 

Black Male 12.1% 8.5% 8.7% 
Within 10% of 

Student population Y 
Within 10% of 

Student population 

Hispanic 
Female 9.0% 4.2% 5.2% 

Within 10% of 
Student population Y 

Within 10% of 
Student population 

Hispanic Male 8.8% 6.8% 7.0% 
Within 10% of 

Student population Y 
Within 10% of 

Student population 

Other 
Minorities 
Female 3.2% 3.4% 5.2% 

Within 10% of 
Student population Y 

Within 10% of 
Student population 

Other 
Minorities 
Male 2.1% 0.8% 0.9% 

Within 10% of 
Student population Y 

Within 10% of 
Student population 

White Female 22.4% 41.5% 40.0% 
Within 10% of 

Student population Y 
Within 10% of 

Student population 

White Male 20.7% 23.7% 22.6% 
Within 10% of 

Student population Y 
Within 10% of 

Student population 

Total Female 56.3% 60.2% 60.9% 
Within 10% of 

Student population Y 
Within 10% of 

Student population 

Total Male 43.7% 39.8% 39.1% 
Within 10% of 

Student population Y 
Within 10% of 

Student population 

 
Describe and evaluate strategies for addressing underrepresentation in full-time instructional positions 

with continued contract. 

Response: The College met all goals within the Full-Time Instructional Staff with Continuing Contract 
category except for the representation of Black female faculty.  Black female faculty representation in 
this category missed the College’s goal of begin within 10% of the student population by 1.3%.  This was 
due in part to the focus on and success of increasing our Black female student population.  The College’s 
Black female student population percentage has continued to increase over the last two reporting 
periods: 1.58% from 2018-2019 to 2019 – 2020 and .5% from 2019 – 2020 to 2020 - 2021.  Current 
strategies should result in the continued increase in student minority populations.  It should be noted 
that during the last reporting period, there were seven Continuing Contract retirements, of which two 
(28.6%) were African American females.  Current data indicates during the next reporting period, the 



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

11 
 

College is expected to gain additional Black female faculty as Continuing Contract faculty.   The College 
will maintain its current support for Annual Contract faculty seeking to become Continuing Contract 
faculty.  This support includes, but is not limited to, the New Faculty Seminar Programs and training 
requirements presented through the College’s Center for Professional Enrichment.    
 

New Barriers (Optional) 
Are there new barriers affecting the successful recruitment and/or retention of females and/or 
minorities in any employment category? 
 

Response: There are no new barriers affecting the successful recruitment and/or retention of females 
and/or minorities in any of the employment categories.      

 

 

 
Review of Part III (A): Attainment of Annual Goals 

(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 
 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Does the report include an analysis and 
assessment of annual and long-range 
goals for increasing women and 
minorities in: 

- - - 

EAM positions? Select one.   

Full-time instructional positions? Select one.   

Full-time with continuing contract 
instructional positions? 

Select one.   

Does the report identify any new 
barriers affecting the recruitment and 
retention of females and/or minorities? 

Select one.   

 

 
 
B. Evaluations of Employment Practices – Evaluations of Key Personnel and Presidents 
1) Provide a summary of the results of the evaluation of department chairpersons, deans, provosts and 
vice presidents in achieving employment accountability goals. The summary should also briefly describe 
the remedial steps to be taken when staff evaluations yield unsatisfactory progress toward meeting 
intended goals.  
 

Response: The Provost’s evaluation of the Deans indicates that each Dean has supported and promoted 
the College’s diversity initiatives.  Program Chairs, along with all other faculty members, are evaluated 
by their Dean. Diversity initiatives have been supported by each Dean through promoting diversity 
among faculty screening committees, participating in and instructing screening committees, and 
providing equity training for Program Chairs.  Deans understand and communicate to the Program 
Chairs the importance, and associated benefits to the College, of having a well diverse faculty. Remedial 
steps are taken when staff evaluations yield unsatisfactory progress toward meeting intended goals.  
Such steps will involve the supervisor re-evaluating past efforts to determine why the goal was not met 
and to develop new strategies on how to meet future goals.  Developing new strategies may include 



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

12 
 

modifying the College’s use of the internet to identify targeted recruitment sites for qualified minority 
and female applicants, expanding publications and advertisements of its vacancies, and revisiting the 
College’s competitive and non-competitive promotional opportunities.   

 
2) Provide a summary of the college’s board of trustees’ annual evaluation of the performance of the 
president in achieving the annual and long-term goals and objectives of the employment equity plan. 
 

Response: The Tallahassee Community College District Board of Trustees (Board) praised the President 
for achieving the goals and objectives of the College.  The Board highlighted the President’s creation and 
elevation of a diverse executive leadership team, which has been applauded by the community, and 
commended him for his “unparalleled” vision, leadership and commitment to the students and 
staff.  While not part of the President’s evaluation, it should be noted that during the fall of 2021, the 
President initiated a campus-wide Equity Summit with presentations from TCC faculty, staff and 
administrators, and sponsored a live webinar regarding Diversity, Equity and Inclusion. During the spring 
semester of 2022 the President sponsored the Diversity, Equity and Inclusion 101: Best Practices for 
Diversity and Inclusion workshop.  

3) What is the date of the president’s most recent evaluation? 
 

Response: May 17, 2021  

 

 
Review of Part III (B): Evaluations of Employment Practices 

(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 
 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Does the report include a summary of 
the results of the evaluation of 
department chairpersons, deans, 
provosts and vice presidents in 
achieving employment accountability 
goals? 

Select one.   

Does the summary describe the 
remedial steps to be taken when staff 
evaluations yield unsatisfactory 
progress toward meeting intended 
goals? 

Select one.   

Does the report include a summary of 
the results of the annual evaluation of 
the college president in achieving the 
annual and long-term goals and 
objectives?  

Select one.   

Does the report include the date of the 
most recent presidential evaluation? 

Select one.   

 

 



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

13 
 

 
 
 
C. Additional Requirements  
The college should complete the following related to additional processes required by section 1012.86, 
F.S.  
 
1) The college maintains diversity and balance in the gender and ethnic composition of the selection 
committee for each vacancy. Make a selection: Yes 
Include a brief description of guidelines used for ensuring balanced and diverse membership on 
selection and review committees. 
 
Response: The College strongly encourages the use of balanced and diverse Review Teams which 
include women and minorities.  It is the responsibility of the hiring authority to ensure that the Review 
Team composition is in accordance with the College’s equity plan. Human Resources will review the 
Team and the recommendation packet to ensure it was completed in accordance with applicable 
College policies and procedures. The make-up of the Review Team may encompass two or more 
members, excluding non-voting or ex-officio members.  The President has the flexibility of altering the 
selection process for executive positions. 
 
2) Briefly describe the process used to grant continuing contracts. 
 
Response: Faculty members must serve at the College in a probationary status in accordance with the 
provisions and intent of 6A-14.0411(1)(a)(b)(c)(d) FAC for five full years in the capacity of a full-time 
faculty member.  Continuing Contract is recommended to the Board of Trustees by the President for 
faculty members who have received satisfactory ratings on the evaluation of the performance of their 
duties and responsibilities during the probationary period. 
 
3) Briefly describe the process used to annually apprise each eligible faculty member of progress toward 
attainment of continuing contract status. 
 
Response: Full-time faculty and Deans meet to set/review goals in the fall of each year. The Deans meet 
with faculty members in the spring to provide an evaluation based on the goals established in the fall, 
including a variety of measures related to teaching and other faculty responsibilities.  Each faculty 
member will receive an annual classroom observation (Continuing Contract faculty receive a bi-annual 
classroom observation unless a more frequent review is needed). The visits are conducted by the 
Dean/Division Director and will be followed by a conference to discuss the observations. The results of 
the observation and conferences may be incorporated as a part of the annual evaluation report.  For 
Continuing Contract faculty, the conference may be a part of the annual assessment conference.  During 
the assessment conference, the faculty member will review their progress toward established goals and 
present next year’s goals to the Dean/Division Director. The discussion consists of observations based on 
any classroom visit, items suggested in student evaluations and other resources as appropriate. 
 
4) Briefly describe the college’s budgetary incentive plan to support and ensure the attainment of 
employment equity accountability goals. Include how resources will be allocated to support the 
implementation of strategies and the achievement of goals in a timely manner.  



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

14 
 

 
Response: The College allocates funds for advertising in national publications and web sites, with direct 
marketing strategies targeting specific minority groups. In addition, the College allocates travel funds to 
invite applicants to campus for interviews. 
 
5) Salary Information: In the following table, include the salary ranges in which new hires were 
employed compared to the salary ranges for employees with comparable experience and qualifications 
as required in section 1012.86(2)(b)(5), F.S. Add additional rows if needed. 
 
Note: Salary information is requested only for new hires. New hire information can be found in your Fall 
Staff Survey IPEDS report. Race and gender information are not required; however, the college may 
choose to include additional information for purposes of diversity analysis. 
 

  Job Classification 

# of 
New 

Hires* 
New Hires* 

Salary Range 

# of Existing 
Employee(s) with 

Comparable 
Experience 

Existing Employee* 
Salary Range 

Row 1 Faculty Hires 9 $40,979 - $49,274 9 $43,764- $50,758 

Row 2 Classified Staff 16 $24,960 - $35,500 86 $24,960 - $45,547 

Row 3 Classified Staff Prof 19 $27,336 - $65,000 32 $35,568 - $67,565 

Row 4 Managerial Prof 11 $50,000 - $95,000 41 $51,676 - $109,611 

Row 5 Administrative 1 $95,000 5 $96,900 – $106,585 

Row 6 Executive 1 $120,000 13 $128,010 - $216,240 
 
*IPEDS definition of New Hires: Includes full-time permanent new hires on the payroll of the institution between 
November 1, 2020, and October 31, 2021, either for the first time (new to the institution) or after a break in service 
and who are still on the payroll of the institution as November 1, 2020. 
 

 

 
Review of Part III(C): Additional Requirements 

(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 
 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Does the report include a brief 
description of guidelines used for 
ensuring balanced and diverse 
membership on selection and review 
committees? 

Select one.   

Does the report include a description of 
the process used to grant continuing 
contracts? 

Select one.   

Does the report include a description of 
the process used to annually apprise 
each eligible faculty member of 

Select one.   



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

15 
 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

progress toward attainment of 
continuing contract status? 

Has the college developed a budgetary 
incentive plan to support and ensure 
attainment of the goals developed 
pursuant to section 1012.86, F.S.? 

Select one.   

Did the college include a summary 
of the incentive plan? 

Select one.   

Did the summary include strategic 
resource allocation? 

Select one.   

Does the report include a comparison 
of the salary ranges of new hires to 
salary ranges for employees with 
comparable experience and 
qualifications? 

Select one.   

 

 

 
  



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

16 
 

Part IV. Strategies to Overcome Underrepresentation of Students 
 

Student Enrollments 
Colleges will continue to examine data trends, using the ENROLLMENT tab, in the representation of 
students by race, ethnicity, gender, students with limited English-language proficiency (LEP) skills and 
students with disabilities (DIS) (self-reported) for first-time-in-college (FTIC) and overall enrollment. 
Based on goals from previous equity reports, identify areas where goals (number of enrollments) set by 
the college last year were achieved and set goals for 2021-22 reporting year. 

 

Enrollments 

FTIC Overall Enrollments 

2020-21 
Goals  

 

2020-21 
Goals 

Achieved 
(Yes/No) 

2021-22 
Goals  

2020-21 
Goals  

 

2020-21 
Goals 

Achieved 
(Yes/No) 

2021-22 
Goals 

Black Males 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase 
the 

percentage 
of Black 

Male FTIC 
as a 

percentage 
of the total 
number of 

FTIC 
students 

 
 
 

No, the 
percentage 

of Black 
Male FTIC 
decreased 

by 4.8%   
as a 

percentage 
of the total 
number of 

FTIC 
 
 
 

Increase 
the 

percentage 
of Black 

Male FTIC 
as a 

percentage 
of the total 
number of 

FTIC 
students 

 
 
 

Increase 
the 

percentage 
of Black 

Male Total 
Enrollment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No, the 
percentage 

of Black 
Male Total 
Enrollment 
decreased 

by .7%. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase 
the 

percentage 
of Black 

Male Total 
Enrollment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Black Females 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase 
the 

percentage 
of Black 
Female 

FTIC as a 
percentage 
of the total 
number of 

FTIC 
students 

 
 
 
 
 

Decrease 
the gap 

between 
Black 

Female 
and Black 

Male Total 
Enrollment 

by 1% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No, the 
gap 

increased 
by 1.2% 
between 

Black 
Female 

and Black 
Male Total 
Enrollment 
(from prior 
year gap of 

8.4% to 
now 9.6%) 

 
 

Decrease 
the gap 

between 
Black 

Female 
and Black 

Male Total 
Enrollment 

by 1% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

17 
 

Enrollments 

FTIC Overall Enrollments 

2020-21 
Goals  

 

2020-21 
Goals 

Achieved 
(Yes/No) 

2021-22 
Goals  

2020-21 
Goals  

 

2020-21 
Goals 

Achieved 
(Yes/No) 

2021-22 
Goals 

Hispanic 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase 
the 

Hispanic 
Total 

Enrollment 
by 1%. 

Yes, the 
Hispanic 

total 
enrollment 
increased 
by 4.2% 

None 
 
 
 
 
 

Other Minorities None None None None None None 

White None None None None None None 

Female None None None None None None 

Male None None None None None None 

LEP None None None None None None 

DIS  None None None None None None 

 
Colleges should continue to assess, modify and/or develop new methods and strategies for 
accomplishing the established goals that have not been achieved based on goals set in the previous 
year.  
 
The college is achieving all goals: No If no, provide: 

 
An evaluation of each of the methods and strategies developed to increase student enrollments 
from underrepresented groups.  
 
Response: While the College’s number of FTIC students increased in 2020-2021, the Total 
Enrollment declined.  The College experienced declines in the percentage of Black male FTIC 
students (4.8%) and Black female FTIC students (4.8%). Overall Total Enrollment of Black 
students saw a decline of .2%, with a more significant decrease in Black males (7%). However, 
the gap between overall Total Enrollment of Black and White students decreased/closed by 
3.5%, and the College saw an increase of .5% in the overall Total Enrollments of Black female 
students.  Hispanic FTIC enrollment grew by 11.1% with percentage growth of males (5.2%) and 
females (5.8%).  Hispanic Total Enrollment increased 4.2%, with gains in both percentages of 
males (1.9%) and females (2.3%).  White student FTIC enrollment increased in number but the 
percentage of FTIC to Total Enrollment of White students remained basically flat.  Overall Total 
Enrollment of White students saw a 3.7% decrease. As can be seen from the numbers, 
recruitment strategies and outreach were successful in enrolling new students at the College in 
the Hispanic categories but were not as successful in recruiting new Black students.  
 
 
 
 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

18 
 

 
 
New methods and strategies, if applicable.  
 
Response: (1) The College continues to refine the new onboarding experience using Admission 
Navigators, assigned advisers, enhanced communications, and the Workday Student system to 
help students complete the admission requirements and register as soon as possible.  (2) The 
College is utilizing dashboards that show application and yield rates by race and ethnicity, in 
order to target additional communication and outreach to Black applicants, including special 
invitations to virtual open houses and residency help sessions, as well as Student Ambassador 
Call Campaigns to all Black applicants.  (3) Career and Academic Advising has established a goal 
to increase the percentage of early registrations of Black students through the delivery of early, 
personalized advising engagements. The College’s partnership with FSU and FAMU continues to 
be strengthened each year with additional opportunities to encourage enrollment and 
ultimately student transfer to one of the local universities. (4) The College has resumed on-
campus “TCC Preview Days” that host area seniors on campus, as well as targeted recruitment 
events for the students that were denied admittance to FSU.  (5) Finally, the College is launching 
a new program finder component to the website that will provide prospective and current 
students the full breadth and depth of the academic and workforce programs that the College 
offers.  These new pages include not only program information but also careers with average 
salaries, stackable pathways where appropriate, program costs, financial aid eligibility, and time 
to complete. The College has truly adopted a cross-campus philosophy on enrollment that 
engages individuals in all areas to help support the growth of enrollment with equity at the 
center of the efforts.    

 

Student Completions 

This year’s report evaluates completions of Associate in Arts (A.A.) degrees, Associate in 
Science/Associate in Applied Science (A.S./A.A.S.) degrees, certificates and baccalaureate degrees, as 
documented in the COMPLETION tab. Based on goals from previous equity reports, identify areas where 
goals (number of degree/certificate completions) set by the college last year were achieved and set 
goals for 2021-22. Certificates include: College Credit Certificates (CCC); Career Certificates (CC); Applied 
Technology Diplomas (ATD); Education Preparation Institution Certificates (EPI); Certificates of 
Professional Preparation (CPP); Apprenticeship Programs (APPR); and Advanced Technical Certificates 
(ATC). 



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

19 
 

A.A. Degrees 

2020-21 
Goals  

2020-21 Goals 
Achieved (Yes/No) 

2021-22 
Goals  

Black 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 

students who 
complete AA degrees 

by 1% 

No, we saw a .9% 
decline in the 

percentage of Black 
students who earned 
an AA in 2020-2021 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 

students who 
complete AA degrees 

by 1% 

Hispanic None None None 

Other Minorities None None None 

White None None None 

Female None None None 

Male 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of Male 

students who 
complete AA degrees 

by 1% 
 

No, we saw a 2.5% 
decline in the 

percentage of Male 
students who earned 
AA degrees in 2020-

2021 

Increase the 
percentage of Male 

students who 
complete AA degrees 

by 1% 

LEP None None None 

DIS None None None 

A.S./A.A.S. Degrees 

2020-21 
Goals 

2020-21 Goals 
Achieved (Yes/No) 

2021-22 
Goals 

Black Males 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 
male students who 

complete A.S. 
degrees by 1% 

 

Yes, we saw a 1.9% 
increase in the 

percentage of Black 
Male Students who 

earned an A.S. 
degree in 2020-21 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 
male students who 

complete A.S. 
degrees by 1% 

 

Black Females 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 

Female students who 
complete A.S. 
degrees by 1% 

 

No, we saw an 
increase of.4% in the 
percentage of Black 

Female students who 
earned an A.S. 

degree in 2020-2021 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 

Female students who 
complete A.S. 
degrees by 1% 

 

Hispanic 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of 

Hispanic students 
who complete A.S. 

degrees by 1% 

Other Minorities None None None 

White None None None 

Female None None None 

Male 
 

None 
 

None 
 

Increase the 
percentage of Male 



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

20 
 

Colleges should continue to assess, modify and/or develop new methods and strategies for 
accomplishing the established goals that have not been achieved based on goals set in the previous 
year. 
 
The college is achieving all goals: No If no, provide: 

 
An evaluation of each of the methods and strategies developed to increase student completions 
from underrepresented groups.  
 
Response: In 2020-2021, the College experienced declines in the overall number of completions 
for all certificates and degrees, excluding the baccalaureate. This decline was evidenced across 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

students who 
complete A.S. 
degrees by 1% 

LEP None None None 

DIS 
 
 

None 
 

None 
 

None 
 

Certificates 

2020-21 
Goals 

2020-21 Goals 
Achieved (Yes/No) 

2021-22 
Goals 

Black 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 

students who 
complete certificates 

by 1% 
 

Yes, we increased by 
3.0% the percentage 

of Black students 
who earned 

certificates in 2020-
2021 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 

students who 
complete certificates 

by 1% 
 

Hispanic None None None 

Other Minorities None None None 

White None None None 

Female None None None 

Male None None None 

LEP None None None 

DIS None None None 

Baccalaureate Degrees 

2020-21 
Goals 

2020-21 Goals 
Achieved (Yes/No) 

2021-22 
Goals 

Black None None None 

Hispanic None None None 

Other Minorities None None None 

White None None None 

Female None None None 

Male None None None 

LEP None None None 

DIS None None None 



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

21 
 

all race/ethnicity categories. However, the College did see percentage increases in Black males 
earning AS degrees (1.9%), Black females earning AA degrees (1.2%) and Black students earning 
certificates (3%). During the first few semesters of the pandemic, there was improved course 
success rates and high levels of student engagement through virtual platforms.  Unfortunately, 
as the pandemic lingered into another year, students experienced fatigue and burnout as 
evidenced by a decline in enrollment of continuing students.  Throughout the past two years, 
the College has continued to embed our CARE model into the fabric of the institution, focusing 
on strategies to build connections for new students, with academic maps and early alerts to help 
students stay on track, offering a variety of resources for in and out of class supports and re-
imagining opportunities for engagement. The College also implemented a new student records 
system and an onboarding/advising service model that provides students a support network 
with an Admissions Navigator, an assigned Career and Academic Adviser, and an Academic 
Success Coach.  Finally, the College has continued to refine and enhance embedded learning 
supports in critical gateway courses to help improve success rates of our minoritized student 
populations (e.g., Learning Specialists, Librarians, Math Champions and Writing Champions (peer 
support programs) and additional virtual tutoring products. As previously noted, the College saw 
improvements in the percentage of Black males who earned AS degrees, Black females who 
earned AA degrees and a significant increase in the percentage of Black students who earned 
certificates.  These increases aligned with our efforts during the pandemic to help individuals 
receive training that leads to employment in essential jobs in our region (e.g., TCC’s Be Essential 
program and Rapid Credentialing Grant).  
 
New methods and strategies, if applicable.  
 
Response: The College continues to place a laser focus on strategies that will narrow equity 
gaps.  (1) The College hosted an Equity Collaboration Session with College leaders and a college-
wide Equity Summit.  (2) Faculty professional development as well as Student Affairs 
professional development is focused on ensuring equitable policies, practices, and procedures. 
(3) The College is now disaggregating student data for Academic and Student Affairs personnel 
with an equity lens, and building out communication and outreach strategies targeted to 
reaching Black students. Institutional Effectiveness personnel have designed dashboards that 
allow leaders to access key performance indicators for their respective areas as well as college-
wide. (4) The College experienced a significant increase in Hispanic students.  In response to this 
increase, the College launched a new academic support program called the Hispanic Alliance for 
Talented Students (H.A.T.S), similar to the existing Black Male Achievers program and 
Sister2Sister.  (5) Survey data for course withdrawals is being reviewed to assess why students 
are withdrawing, from individual courses as well as the College, to determine where any 
additional supports are needed.  (6) The College is also in the design stages to roll out messaging 
and supports to demonstrate the College’s commitment to serving students who are also 
parents.  (7) Career and Academic Advising in collaboration with Academic Success Coaches are 
improving early alert interventions as well as designing a Success Seminar to students who 
experience academic difficulty.  (8) Finally, Academic Affairs has launched a new “Pathways to 
Persistence” program.  Pathways to Persistence is being developed as a campus-wide 
collaborative partnership, designed to create a more intentional early alert environment of 
student support that fosters self-efficacy, meaning and purpose, and a sense of belonging for 
students. 

https://mymailtccfl.sharepoint.com/sites/P2P/Lists/Student%20Entries/PrePlans.aspx


College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

22 
 

 
Student Success in Targeted Programs 
The college’s plan for 2020-21 should have included methods and strategies to increase the 
participation of students in programs and courses in which students have been traditionally 
underrepresented, including, but not limited to, mathematics, science, computer technology, 
electronics, communications technology, engineering and career education, as required under section 
1000.05(4), F.S. Colleges should provide any updates to methods and strategies, if applicable. 
 
 
 
The college is providing updates: Yes If no, provide: 

 
An evaluation of each of the methods and strategies developed to increase underrepresented 
student participation in programs and courses. 
 
Response: The College offers several programs that are geared towards increasing student 
participation in programs and courses in which students have been traditionally 
underrepresented, including, but not limited to, mathematics, science, computer technology, 
electronics, communications technology, engineering and career education, as required under 
§1000.05, F.S. The programs are as follows: Florida Georgia Louis Stokes Alliance for Minority 
Participation (FGLSAMP), National Science Foundation (NSF) S-STEM, Sister 2 Sister, and Black 
Male Achievers. Each program provides strategies to increase participation for 
underrepresented students such as: 

 
New methods and strategies, if applicable. 
 

Strategy Expected 
Outcomes 

Assessment 
Method 

Results 

The    College    establishes   

partnerships with local 

universities and 

laboratories to 

provide internship 

opportunities for 

students enrolled in 

STEM related courses 

and disciplines. 

The College will 

engage  and actively 

recruit students for 

full scholarships within 

STEM disciplines 

(defined by National 

Science Foundation) 

via  outreach and 

Number of 

underrepresented 

students participating 

in STEM internships will 

increase by 10%. 

 

Recruitment of 
qualified students for 
STEM scholarship 
placement will reach 
100%. 

Compare number of 

underrepresented 

students 

participating in 

internships during 

2018-2019 to 2019-

2020  to 2020-2021. 

2018-2019: 18 students 

2019-2020: 3 students  

2020-2021: 0 

The College did not 
experience an increase in 
underrepresented students 
participating in STEM 
internships. The number of 
students decreased during 
2020-21 as internships were  
disrupted      by  the pandemic. 
The College will continue to 
explore methods to further 
increase participation. 
2021- 2022 data will not be 
available until June 2022. 



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

23 
 

engagement in the 

community and within 

the campus. 

 

The College will 

collaborate with STEM 

faculty to serve as 

mentors to students in 

STEM courses and 

disciplines. 

Provide workshops for 
academic and career 
preparedness post-
graduation from TCC. 
 

The College offers 

scholarship 

opportunities for 

underrepresented 

students  who  are 

enrolled in  STEM  

related  programs 

(scholarships 

provided through 

FGLSAMP and NSF S-

STEM).  

 

The College will 

provide better 

marketing to 

incoming high school 

students by 

visiting high school 
senior nights; 
participating in the 
scholarship fairs; 
contacting students 
who identify as being 
interested in STEM. 
 

Number of qualified 
awardees will increase 
by 10%. 

Compare number of 

underrepresented 

students awarded 

scholarships during 

2018-2019 to 2019-

2020   to 2020-2021. 

2018-2019: 35    

2019-2020: 47    

2020-2021: 18   

 

The College experienced a 

decrease in the number of 

underrepresented students 

who were awarded 

scholarships.  

The College will continue to 

explore more options to 

increase the number of 

students. 2021-2022 data 

will not be available until 

June 2022. 

The College offers STEM 
Center tutoring for STEM 
Gateway Courses. 

Number of 
underrepresented 
students successfully 
completing STEM 

Compare the 

success rates of 

underrepresented 

students 

2018-2019: 38  students 

2019-2020: 20     students 
2020-2021 : 12 students 



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

24 
 

Gateway Courses will 
increase by 10%. 

participating in 

tutoring provided by 

the STEM Center to 

the 

underrepresented 

students who are 

not participating in 

tutoring during 

2018-2019 to 2019-

2020 to 2020-2021. 

The College continued to 
experience a decrease in 
underrepresented students 
participating in STEM 
tutoring. The disruption of 
the pandemic  shifted  most 
tutoring to a virtual setting. 
The      College will continue to 
explore methods to further 
increase participation. 
2021-2022  data  will   not be 
available until June 2022. 
 

The College offers 
extracurricular 
Workshops to increase 
STEM awareness: 
Robotics Workshop; 
Drone Workshop; 3D 
Printing Workshop; 
Auto-Cad Workshop. 
Increase marketing for 
the workshops as well 
as increase the 
number of available 
workshops. 

Number of 
underrepresented 
students participating 
in extracurricular 
workshops will 
increase by 10%. 

Compare number of 

underrepresented 

students 

participating in the 

activities during 

2018-2019 to 2019-

2020  to 2020-2021. 

2018-2019: 88          students 

2019-2020: 83 students 

2020-2021: 23 

 

The College experienced a 

dramatic decrease in 

underrepresented students 

participating in 

extracurricular workshops 

and STEM internships. The 

continuation of the 

pandemic did not allow for 

these practical workshops 

to occur as often as many 

students were enrolled in 

remote courses. The 

College will continue to 

explore methods to further 

increase participation. 2021-

2022 data will not be 

available until June 

2022. 

The College offers 
Career Awareness 
Workshops for 
underrepresented 
students: Increase the 
offerings of STEM 
Career Workshops and 
invite 
underrepresented 
professionals to 

Increase the number of 
Career Awareness 
Workshops for 
underrepresented 
students. 

Compare the number 
of workshops offered 
each year. 

2018-2019: 10 

2019-2020: 0 
2020-2021: 6 

 
The College saw an increase 

of career awareness 

workshops in 2020-2021 for 

underrepresented 

students. The College 



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

25 
 

discuss their career 
pathway. 

continues to examine how 

more STEM focused 

career workshops can be 

presented. 

2021-2022 data will not be 
available until June 2022. 
 

 
 
 

 

Review of Part IV: Strategies to Overcome Underrepresentation of Students 
(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 

 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Is the college achieving all its goals in 
terms of student enrollments by race, 
gender, students with disabilities and 
students with limited English 
proficiencies? 

Select one.   

If no, evaluation of current 
methods and strategies and new 
methods and strategies provided? 

Select one.   

Is the college achieving all its goals in 
terms of student completions by race, 
gender, students with disabilities and 
students with limited English 
proficiencies? 

Select one.   

If no, evaluation of current 
methods and strategies and new 
methods and strategies provided? 

Select one.   

The report should include an analysis of 
student participation in traditionally 
underrepresented programs and 
courses, including, but not limited to, 
mathematics, science, computer 
technology, electronics, 
communications technology, 
engineering and career education. Did 
the college provide updates for its goal 
in terms of student completions across 
the aforementioned categories?   

Select one.   

If no, evaluation of current 
methods and strategies and new 
methods and strategies provided? 

Select one.   



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

26 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

27 
 

Part V. Substitution Waivers for Admissions and  
Course Substitutions for Eligible Students with Disabilities 

 
Course Substitution Report, Form CSR01 

Please list the number of students who received course substitutions as well as the required course(s), 
substitution(s) provided and discipline area (e.g., mathematics) by disability type beginning with the fall 
semester of the preceding academic year. For the courses, please include the prefix, course number and 
course name (e.g., ENC 1101 Composition I). Add rows if necessary. Please indicate “0” for the number 
of students if no substitutions were granted. 

Disability Type Number of 
Students 

Required Course(s)  
(prefix, number and 
title) 

Substituted Course(s)  
(prefix, number and 
title) 

Discipline Area 

Deaf/Hard of 
Hearing 

    

   

   

Visual Impairment     

   

   

Specific Learning 
Disability 

16 •MGF1106-
Mathematics I for 
Liberal Arts 

•MGF1107-
Mathematics II for 
Liberal Arts 

 MAT 1033 
Intermediate 
Algebra 

 CGS 1060 
Computer and 
Internet 
Literacy 

 OCE 1001 
Introductory 
Oceanography 

 EME 2040 
Introduction to 
Technology for 
Educators 

 ESC 1000 
Earth Science  

 LIS 2004  
Research 
Strategies for 
College 
Students 

General Education 
Mathematics 



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

28 
 

Disability Type Number of 
Students 

Required Course(s)  
(prefix, number and 
title) 

Substituted Course(s)  
(prefix, number and 
title) 

Discipline Area 

 MET 1010 
Meteorology  

 AST 1002  
Introduction to 
Astronomy 

 BSC 1020 - 
Introduction 
to Human 
Biological 
Sciences 

 EVR 1001 - 
Introduction 
to 
Environmental 
Sciences 
 

Two (2) Semesters of 
Foreign Language 

 ANT2418 
Introduction to 
Cultural 
Anthropology 

 AML2600 
African 
American 
Literature 

 LIT 2323  
Multicultural 
Methodology  

 ARH 2500 
Art of the 
World 

Foreign Language 

Orthopedic 
Impairment 

    

   

   

Speech/Language 
Impairment 

    

   

   



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

29 
 

Disability Type Number of 
Students 

Required Course(s)  
(prefix, number and 
title) 

Substituted Course(s)  
(prefix, number and 
title) 

Discipline Area 

Emotional or 
Behavioral 
Disability 

1  MGF1106-
Mathematics 
I for Liberal 
Arts 

 •MGF1107-
Mathematics 
II for Liberal 
Arts 

 BSC 1020 - 
Introduction 
to Human 
Biological 
Sciences 

 EVR 1001 - 
Introduction 
to 
Environmental 
Sciences 

 

General Education 
Mathematics 

Two (2) Semesters of 
Foreign Language 

 ANT 2418 
Introduction to 
Cultural 
Anthropology 

 AML 2600 
African 
American 
Literature 

 LIT 2323  
Multicultural 
Methodology  

 ARH 2500 
Art of the 
World 

Foreign Language 

   

Autism Spectrum 
Disorder 

1 •MGF1106-
Mathematics I for 
Liberal Arts 

•MGF1107-
Mathematics II for 
Liberal Arts 

 BSC 1020 - 
Introduction 
to Human 
Biological 
Sciences 

 EVR 1001 - 
Introduction 
to 
Environmental 
Sciences 
 

 

General Education 
Mathematics 



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

30 
 

Disability Type Number of 
Students 

Required Course(s)  
(prefix, number and 
title) 

Substituted Course(s)  
(prefix, number and 
title) 

Discipline Area 

   

   

Traumatic Brain 
Injury 

    

   

   

Other Health 
Impairment 

    

   

   

How many requests for course substitutions were made and how many substitutions were granted 
during the preceding academic year? (Please list the number of requests per semester starting with the 
fall semester.) Please indicate “0” if no substitutions were requested or granted. 

Semester Number of Substitutions Requested  Number of Substitutions Granted 

Fall 2020 6 5 

Spring 2021 10 9 

Summer 2021 6 5 

Total 22 19 

 

 

 

Review of Part V: Course Substitutions 
(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 

 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Did the college submit 
the Course Substitution 
Report? 

Select 
one. 

  

 

 

  



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

31 
 

Part VI. Gender Equity in Athletics 

 
The college offers athletic programs: Yes If no, move to the next section. If yes, complete this section. 
 
Assessment of Athletic Programs  
Section 1006.71, F.S., Gender equity in intercollegiate athletics, is applicable to postsecondary 
institutions offering athletic programs. Florida College System institutions that offer athletic programs 
shall develop a gender equity plan pursuant to section 1000.05, F.S. The plan is to include consideration 
of equity in sports offerings, participation, availability of facilities, scholarship offerings and funds 
allocated for administration, recruitment, comparable coaching, publicity and promotion and other 
support costs. An annual assessment is required and each college president is to be evaluated on the 
extent to which gender equity goals have been accomplished.  
 
For this part, provide the college’s latest Equity in Athletics Disclosure Act (EADA) Survey Federal Report 
as an appendix. 
 
Data Assessment  
Section 1006.71, F.S., requires an assessment of major areas to evaluate the college’s progress toward 
gender equity in athletics.  
 
Provide updates or new information related to sports offerings; participation; availability of facilities; 
scholarship offerings; funds allocated for administration, recruitment, comparable coaching, publicity 
and promotions; or other considerations by the college to continue efforts to achieve gender equity. If 
the college is not in compliance with Title IX, updates must be included in the college’s Corrective Action 
Plan of this report. 
 
Compliance with Title IX  
Using athletic participation data from the latest EADA Survey Federal Report, complete the following 
table to determine gender equity based on participation rates. 

 
Athletic Participation by Gender Compared to Student Enrollments by  

Gender for July 1, 2019, through June 30, 2020, and July 1, 2020, through June 30, 2021 
 

 2019-20 2020-21 

 Males Females Total  Males Females Total   

Total Number of Athletes 56 42 98 Total Number of Athletes 55 40 95 
Percent of Athletes by 
Gender 

57.1% 42.9% 100% Percent of Athletes by 
Gender 

57.9% 42.1% 100% 

Total Number of 
Enrollments 

6,338 7,447 13,785 Total Number of 
Enrollments 

5,633 7,264 12,897 

Percent of Enrollments 
by Gender 

46% 54% 100% Percent of Enrollments 
by Gender 

43.7% 56.3% 100% 

Difference between the 
percent of athletes and 
the percent of students 
enrolled 

11.1% -11.1%  Difference between the 
percent of athletes and 
the percent of students 
enrolled 

14.2% -14.2%  

 



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

32 
 

Proportionality of Participation 
Based on the table, is the percentage of female athletes greater than (or at least within 5 percentage 
points of) the percent of female students enrolled? 2019-20: No 2020-21: No 
Based on the participation rates of female athletes compared to female enrollments and based on the 
college’s athletic program assessment as presented in the EADA Survey Federal Report, check at least 
one component below for assuring the institution is in compliance with Title IX, Gender Equity in 
Athletics. 
 

 ☒   Accommodation of interests and abilities 

 ☐   Substantial proportionality 

 ☒   History and practice of expansion of sports 
 

Corrective Action Plan  
If the program is not in compliance, complete the Corrective Action Plan below and specify or update 
the plan to achieve compliance. Include completion dates for each method and strategy. 
 

Gender Equity in 
Athletics 
Component 

Planned Actions to Address 
Deficiencies Found in Athletics 

Responsible Person(s) and 
Contact Information 

Timelines  

Athletic 
Participation by 
Gender Compared 
to Student 
Enrollments 

Cross Country and Track and Field 
(T&F) continues to provide the best 
opportunity for growth in female 
participation.  
 
The potential to add competitive 
cheer will also be an opportunity for 
female participation. 
 
The College is hosting multiple T&F 
events this Spring 2022, which will 
provide tools to help recruit female 
student athletes. The College is also 
hosting the NJCAA Cross Country 
National Championships, which will 
give the College national exposure 
for that sport. 
 
As the NJCAA sanctions additional 
sports, such as flag football and 
competitive cheer, the College will 
continue to research the feasibility of 
adding opportunities for female 
participants. 
 
 

Chuck Moore 
chuck.moore@tcc.fl.edu 
850-201-6085 

Spring 2022 – 
hosting 
multiple events 
to recruit 
student 
athletes 
 
Fall 2022 – 
hosting NJCAA 
National 
Championships 

 

 

 

mailto:chuck.moore@tcc.fl.edu


College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

33 
 

 

Review of Part VI: Gender Equity in Athletics 

(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Does the report include the Equity in 
Athletic Disclosure Act (EADA) Survey 
Federal Report for 2021? 

Select one.   

Does the equity report reflect updates 
or new information related to: sports 
offerings; participation, availability of 
facilities; scholarship offerings; funds 
allocated for administration, 
recruitment, comparable coaching, 
publicity and promotions, or other 
considerations by the college to 
continue efforts to achieve gender 
equity? 

Select one.   

Is the percentage of female athletes 
greater than (or at least within five 
percentage points of) the percent of 
female students enrolled? 

Select one.   

Does the report include any of the 
following to ensure compliance with 
Title IX?  

Select one.   

Accommodation of interests and 
abilities 

Select one.   

Substantial proportionality Select one.   

History and practice of expansion of 
sports 

Select one.   

If there were any disparities in sections 
A or B, or if the percentage of female 
participants was not substantially 
proportionate to the percentage of 
female enrollments, did the college 
submit a corrective action plan?  

Select one.   

 

 



34 
 

Part VII. Signature Page 

 

FLORIDA EDUCATIONAL EQUITY ACT 
2021-22 Annual EQUITY UPDATE REPORT 

Signature Page 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The college ensures that section 1000.05, F.S., section 1006.71, F.S., and section 1012.86, F.S., and 
implementing Rules 6A-6A-10.041 and 6A-19.001-.010, F.A.C., referenced in this report, are properly 
implemented and that this institution prohibits discrimination against students, applicants for 
admission, employees or applicants for employment on the basis of race, color, ethnicity, national 
origin, gender, pregnancy, disability, age or marital status.  
 
The college has developed policies and procedures for providing reasonable substitutions for admission, 
graduation, study program admission and upper-division entry for eligible students with disabilities as 
required by section 1007.264 and section 1007.465, F.S., and for implementing Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973.  
 
The institution is in compliance with the identified components of the athletic programs, as required by 
Title IX, the Florida Educational Equity Act, section 1006.71, F.S., Gender equity in intercollegiate 
athletics and, where not compliant, the college has implemented a corrective action plan. (Applicable 
for institutions with athletic programs.) 
 
The college actively implements and monitors the Employment Equity Accountability Plan and certifies 
compliance with all statutory requirements of section 1012.86, F.S. 

 
 

Renae Tolson, Equity Officer Date 
 
 

Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D., President Date 
 
 

Eric Grant, Chair, College Board Of Trustees Date 

 

Tallahassee Community College 



College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

35 
 

This concludes the 2021-22 Annual Equity Update Report, which must be submitted, as a Word 

document, to FCSInfo@fldoe.org by April 29, 2022. Colleges may attach additional files (PDF or Word) 

as appendices.  

  

mailto:FCSInfo@fldoe.org


College Annual Equity Update  

2021-22 Template 

 

  

 

36 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 16, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
 ______________________ 
SUBJECT: Fund Analysis - April 

 
 
Item Description 
This item is to provide the Board a summary of the College’s operating revenues and 
expenses as of 4/29/2022. 
 
Overview and Background 
As directed in the Florida Public Community College Accounting Manual, revenues from state 
appropriations, student tuition and fees, interest earned, and other contributions are recorded 
and monitored in the College’s operating fund (fund 1).  Expenditures for direct instruction 
expenses are also recorded in the operating fund. 
 
In accordance with Florida Statutes (1011.01), the Board of Trustees must approve the 
College’s operating fund budget each fiscal year. The College monitors the operating fund 
activity to ensure approved budget limits are maintained. Additionally, the Board has 
requested a report of all purchases over $100,000, but less than $325,000. There were no 
applicable purchases for the month of April. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
For information only, no Board action required. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
The College continues to be in sound financial condition. 
 
Recommended Action 
For information only, no Board action required. 

 



REVENUE April Month YTD YTD Annual % of YTD 
Actual Budget Actual Budget Budget Budget

Student Fees 2,741,898$            1,933,506$            24,607,805$          19,335,064            23,202,077$          106%
State Support 3,056,964              2,981,647              27,914,045            29,816,467            35,779,760            78%
Federal Support 119,483                 83,333                   2,911,966              833,333                 1,000,000              291%
Other Revenue 426,106                 105,680                 2,009,393              1,056,803              1,268,163              158%
Non-Revenue Sources -                         83,333                   -                         833,333                 1,000,000              0%

TOTAL REVENUE 6,344,451              5,187,500              57,443,209            51,875,000            62,250,000            92%

EXPENSES April Month YTD YTD Annual % of YTD 
Actual Budget Actual Budget Budget Expenses

PERSONNEL COSTS
Administrative 268,274                 274,414                 2,862,085              2,744,140              3,292,968              87%
Instructional 950,094                 1,076,153              10,381,811            10,761,530            12,913,836            80%
Non-Instructional 1,176,344              1,333,635              12,686,875            13,336,354            16,003,625            79%
OPS 552,484                 514,613                 5,113,096              5,146,128              6,175,354              83%
Personnel Benefits 823,904                 884,518                 8,392,611              8,845,181              10,614,217            79%

TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 3,771,100              4,083,333              39,436,478            40,833,334            49,000,000            80%

CURRENT EXPENSES
Services 361,148                 361,153                 3,120,962              3,611,526              4,333,831              72%
Material & Supplies 57,383                   211,762                 1,371,056              2,117,622              2,541,146              54%
Other Current Charges 418,020                 510,419                 5,799,114              5,104,186              6,125,023              95%

TOTAL CURRENT EXPENSES 836,551                 1,083,333              10,291,132            10,833,333            13,000,000            79%

CAPITAL OUTLAY -                         20,833                   60,392                   208,333                 250,000                 24%

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,607,651$            5,187,500$            49,788,002$          51,875,000$          62,250,000$          80%

Tallahassee Community College Fund Analysis
Unrestricted Current Fund

As of April 30, 2022



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 16, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
   
SUBJECT: Construction Status Report 

 
 
Item Description 
This item describes the status of various construction, renovation, remodeling and site 
improvement projects at all TCC locations for the Board of Trustees. 
 
Overview and Background 
The attached Construction Status report details the noteworthy construction and renovation 
projects being undertaken to support the educational mission of the College. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
None. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
All construction and renovation projects are funded prior to approval, with most being funded 
from capital improvement fees. 
 
Recommended Action 
Presented as an information item only. 
 

 



CONSTRUCTION STATUS REPORT – AS OF MAY 2022 
 
 
MAIN CAMPUS (SITE 1) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 
Facilities Room 
Renovation – TPP 211 100% N/A Complete 

Student Union Bldg#35 
1st Floor/Food Court 
Renovation 

20% TBD Demolition started 5/3/2022 

Administration Bldg#27 
Lobby 35% TBD WaterWall received; VideoWall on backorder. 

Sidewalk Repairs, 
Elimination of Trip 
Hazards 

Continuous On-going Repaired 1,615 Trip Hazards and Replaced 38 
sections of Sidewalk 

Elevator Upgrades at 
SMA Bldg#2  10% TBD Materials on backorder 

Elevator Upgrades at 
SU Bldg#35 10% TBD Materials on backorder 

Support Services Bldg#17 
Roof Renovations 25% TBD In progress 

Facilities Bldg#54 Roof 
Renovations 15% TBD Materials Delivered 

Athletics 10% TBD Awaiting 100% Construction Documents 

Baseball Fieldhouse 
Window Replacement 20% TBD Out for Bid 

SM Bldg#18 Indoor Air 
Improvements 100% N/A 6 Air Handling Units, 86 VAV units and 7,908 LF of 

ductwork cleaned 
CT Bldg#41 Indoor Air 
Improvements 100% N/A 2 Air Handler Units, 31 VAV units and 3,661 LF 

ductwork cleaned 
Flagpole Memorial 
Garden 20% TBD Contract awarded 

E-Sports in Lifetime 
Sports 15% TBD A/V Electrical installation in progress 

Asbestos Abatement  
AP 150-151 5% TBD PO issued 

Carpet/LVT Replacements I/P In Progress 

TPP 1st Floor South Counseling Center (Materials 
on Order) 
TPP 266 Breakroom LVT (Materials on Order) 
AC Bldg Floors 1-3 (Materials on Order) 
AP 1st Floor (Materials on Order)  
CB 1st and 2nd Floor - Elevator Lobby (Complete)  
CB 2nd Floor - Campus Police Reception 
(Complete) 

 



Page 2 

 

SUSTAINABILITY % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

Hydration Stations Continuous On-going 
Prevented 252,980 Plastic Bottles from going to 
landfills 

Recycled Plastic 
Lumber/Furniture 

Continuous On-going 
Prevented 1,683,000 Plastic Bags from going to 
landfills 

CO2 Avoidance Continuous On-going Prevented 12,649 lbs. of CO2 from being released 
into the atmosphere 

GADSDEN SERVICE CENTER (SITE 2) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 
None to report    

FLORIDA PUBLIC SAFETY INSTITUTE (SITE 3) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 
Classroom Bldg#3 Vent 
Piping Replacement 100% N/A Complete 

Dining Facility Bldg#8 
(IAQ) 30% TBD Indoor air quality 

FPSI Master Plan 15% TBD In progress 

CENTER FOR INNOVATION (SITE 4) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 
CFI 2nd Floor Renovation 35% TBD In progress 

GHAZVINI CENTER FOR HEALTHCARE EDUCATION (SITE 5) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 
Ghazvini Simulator 
Expansion 15% TBD Approved – Notice to Proceed Issued 

Ghazvini Patio Solar Panel 
System 5% TBD CM RFQ 2022-05 Advertised 4-19-2022 

WAKULLA ENVIRONMENTAL INSTITUTE (SITE 6) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 
WEI Master Plan 15% TBD In progress 
Infrastructure 10% TBD In progress 
Pole Barn 15% TBD Pole Barn Kit Received – Install on 4/28/22 
Irrigation Well 10% TBD Contract Issued 



Page 3 

 

 
 
FOUNDATION CLASSROOM RENOVATION SUMMARY 

Renovated Classroom(s) Cost to Date 

AC 212 - Classroom Renovations $          47,497.91 

AC 219 - Classroom Renovations $          44,815.95 

AC 220 - Classroom Renovations $          48,765.68 

SM 119 - Classroom Renovations $          35,331.12 

AP 149 - Classroom Renovations $          39,457.68 

SM 118 - Classroom Renovations $          24,547.31 

CH 233 - Classroom Renovations $                245.00 

CH 234 - Classroom Renovations $                230.00 

SM 114 - Classroom Renovations $                690.00  

SM 211 - Classroom Renovations $             9,901.71 

  

  

  

  

 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

May 16, 2022 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
 ______________________ 
SUBJECT: Architect Invoices 

 
 
Item Description 
This item requests that the Board approve the architect invoices submitted for the month of 
April 2022.  
 
Overview and Background 
The College is now under contract with five architectural firms; Architects | Lewis + Whitlock 
PA, BKJ, Inc. Architecture, Clemons, Rutherford & Associates, Inc., DAG Architects Inc., and 
Fitzgerald Collaborative Group, LLC to provide architectural and engineering services for 
projects at all sites and counties. To ensure quality, the five firms will be assigned projects on 
a rotational basis with standardized hourly fees. 
 
Architects I Lewis + Whitlock, PA - $7,420.00 
BKJ, Inc. Architecture - $0.00 
Clemons, Rutherford & Associates, Inc. - $0.00 
DAG Architects, Inc. - $13,616.25 
Fitzgerald Collaborative Group, LLC - $15,333.68 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board last authorized architect invoices at the April 18, 2022 meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Funds for minor projects and Master Plans are available from the Capital Improvement fees. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize payment of architectural invoices as presented. 
 

 



TO:  Tallahassee Community College Page      1   of    1    Pages
        Attn:  Trey Kimbrel Federal I.D. No: 59-3616761
        444 Appleyard Drive
       Tallahassee, Florida 32304 Purchase Order No:

Project Name:  
FROM:  Architects: Lewis + Whitlock, P.A.  
             206 W. Virginia St. DATE: 4/27/2022
             Tallahassee, Florida 32301

LESS 
DESCRIPTION TOTAL FEE PERCENT AMOUNT PREVIOUSLY AMOUNT DUE

COMPLETE REMAINING BILLED THIS INVOICE
Field Measurements / Base File $7,420.00 100% $0.00 $0.00 $7,420.00
Designs Documents $39,612.00 0% $39,612.00 $0.00 $0.00
100% Construction Documents $59,418.00 0% $59,418.00 $0.00 $0.00
Bid / Permitting $6,602.00 0% $6,602.00 $0.00 $0.00
Construction Administration $26,408.00 0% $26,408.00 $0.00 $0.00
Additional Engineering Services $7,550.00 0% $7,550.00 $0.00 $0.00

Printing $934.00 0% $934.00 $0.00 $0.00

GRAND TOTALS $147,944.00 $140,524.00 $0.00 $7,420.00

Invoice Total $7,420.00
                                                             * Amount payable directly to: (    )
                                                             * Amount payable directly to: ( ) *

CERTIFIED TRUE AND CORRECT BY:

Rodney L. Lewis, Principal
  (Signature of Principal)          (Typed Name and Title)

THE PRESENT STATUS OF THE ACCOUNT IS AS FOLLOWS:

INVOICE NO. 20390.6.1

PO-014722
Lifetime Sports Facility 

Improvements



Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America
Federal ID: 59-1141270
Tax Exemption ID: 85-80-125307-72C8

Purchase Order

Purchase Order Number PO-014722

Purchase Order Date 11/10/2021

Payment Terms Net 30

Requestor Carl Ross

Phone Number (850) 201-6200

 

Page 1 of 2

Purchasing & General Services Director

Supplier:

Architects: Lewis + Whitlock, PA
206 W Virginia Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301
United States of America

Ship To:

Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America

Comments:

Main Campus Site Improvements Building #15 – Design & 
Documentation
Contact: Don.Herr@tcc.fl.edu , 850-201-6168

Bill To:

Tallahassee Community College
ATTN:  Accounts Payable
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304-2895
United States of America
(850) 201-8525

Currency Total Lines Amount Total Tax Amount Total PO Amount
USD 147,944.00 0.00 147,944.00

Service Lines

Line Number Item Name Description Start Date End Date Due Date Amount

1  Total printing fees for field 
measurements, 
engineering, design 
development submittal, 
100% CD submittal and 100 
CD Specs.

   15,905.00



Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America
Federal ID: 59-1141270
Tax Exemption ID: 85-80-125307-72C8

Purchase Order

Purchase Order Number PO-014722

Purchase Order Date 11/10/2021

Payment Terms Net 30

Requestor Carl Ross

Phone Number (850) 201-6200

 

Page 2 of 2

Service Lines

Line Number Item Name Description Start Date End Date Due Date Amount

2  Professional services for 
Design and Documentation 
for improvements to 
building#15. 
Specifics per attached 
proposal dated November 
01, 2021.  
**REF: TCC RFQ 2020-02 
Recommendation for 
Architectural Services; 
Approved at 2/17/20 BOT 
Meeting**

   132,039.00

Messages
Tallahassee Community College does not discriminate against any person on the basis of age, color, disability, ethnicity, gender identity, genetic information, 
marital status, national origin, pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, or veteran status in its programs and activities

VERIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT: In accordance with State of Florida Office of the Governor Executive Order Number 11-02, the firm shall utilize the U.S. 
Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all persons employed during the contract term by the firm to perform 
employment duties within Florida and all persons (including sub-consultants) assigned by the firm to perform work pursuant to the contract with Tallahassee 
Community College.

Please send all Invoices to Accounts Payable -  "AcctPay@tcc.fl.edu"
To ensure timely payments, TCC requires the College's purchase order number to be included on all invoices submitted for payment.

Any questions related to payment of supplier invoices should be directed to the TCC Accounts Payable Office at (850) 201-8565.



Tallahassee Community College Invoice number 210208_0422 Invoice date 04/27/2022

Page 1 of 2

Conversion of the Outdoor Storage Room 248-H2 
Eng

5,900.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Conversion of the Outdoor Storage Room 248-
FCG

15,440.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Additional Services

Construction Administration - Kever McKee 600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Post Test and Balance - H2 Eng 5,700.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Pre Test and Balance - H2 Eng 5,700.00 100.00 5,700.00 5,700.00 0.00

Record Documents - H2 Eng 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hydrant Flow Test-H2 Eng 600.00 100.00 600.00 600.00 0.00

Construction Administration - H2 Eng 6,150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Construction Administration - FCG 18,081.80 10.00 0.00 1,808.18 1,808.18

Bidding - H2 Engineering 2,050.00 100.00 0.00 2,050.00 2,050.00

Bidding - FCG 11,125.20 100.00 11,125.20 11,125.20 0.00

Agency Permitting - FCG 8,234.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Permit Docs - Kever McKee 1,083.00 100.00 1,083.00 1,083.00 0.00

Permit Docs - H2 Engineering 8,200.00 100.00 8,200.00 8,200.00 0.00

Permit Docs - FCG 13,253.50 100.00 13,253.50 13,253.50 0.00

90% Construction Documents-Kever McKee 1,084.00 100.00 1,084.00 1,084.00 0.00

90% Construction Documents - H2 Eng 12,300.00 100.00 12,300.00 12,300.00 0.00

90% Construction Documents - FCG 20,638.00 100.00 20,638.00 20,638.00 0.00

Design Development - Kever McKee 1,083.00 100.00 1,083.00 1,083.00 0.00

Design Development - H2 Engineering 8,200.00 100.00 8,200.00 8,200.00 0.00

Design Development - FCG 18,150.40 100.00 18,150.40 18,150.40 0.00

Schematic Design - Kever/McKee Eng 500.00 100.00 500.00 500.00 0.00

Schematic Design - H2 Engineering 4,100.00 100.00 4,100.00 4,100.00 0.00

Schematic Design - FCG 17,356.60 100.00 17,356.60 17,356.60 0.00

Programming - FCG 8,500.00 100.00 8,500.00 8,500.00 0.00

Measured Drawings - FCG 7,500.00 100.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 0.00

Subtotal 181,190.00 79.05 139,373.70 143,231.88 3,858.18

Basic Services

Description
Contract

Amount

Percent

Complete

Prior

Billed

Total

Billed

Current

Billed

Fitzgerald Collaborative Group, LLC

Professional Architectural Services

PO- 013757

Tallahassee Community College
Jenny Shuler
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304-2895

Invoice number 210208_0422
Date 04/27/2022

Project 210208  TCC - GHAZVINI NURSING 
SIMULATION AUDITIORIUM 
RENOVATION



Date 04/27/2022
Invoice number 210208_0422Tallahassee Community College

210208  TCC - GHAZVINI NURSING SIMULATION AUDITIORIUM RENOVATIONProject

Tallahassee Community College Invoice number 210208_0422 Invoice date 04/27/2022

Page 2 of 2

Invoice total 3,858.18

210208_0422 04/27/2022 3,858.18 3,858.18

Total 3,858.18 3,858.18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Aging Summary

Invoice Number Invoice Date Outstanding Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90 Over 120

We appreciate your business.  Please remit payment at your earliest convenience to 1401 Peachtree Street, Suite 200, Atlanta, GA 
30309.  If you have any questions please contact Judith 832.331.9418, or judith@fc-groupllc.com.

Subtotal 21,340.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 202,530.00 70.72 139,373.70 143,231.88 3,858.18

Description
Contract

Amount

Percent

Complete

Prior

Billed

Total

Billed

Current

Billed



Tallahassee Community College Invoice number 210224_0422 Invoice date 04/27/2022

Page 1 of 2

Structural Investigation, Analysis and Report-
Kever McKee

2,850.00 100.00 2,850.00 2,850.00 0.00

Structural Investigation, Analysis and Report-FCG 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Independent Green Technologies (IGT Solar) 5,400.00 33.61 1,815.00 1,815.00 0.00

Programming 7,500.00 100.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 0.00

Measured Drawings 2,400.00 50.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 0.00

Subtotal 18,650.00 71.66 13,365.00 13,365.00 0.00

Additional Required Services

Construction Administration-H2 Engineering 2,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Construction Administration-Kever McKee 750.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Construction Administration 9,260.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Bidding 4,440.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Permit Documents-H2 Engineering 2,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Permit Documents-Kever McKee 562.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Permit Documents 3,363.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

90% Construction Documents-H2 Engineer 2,200.00 75.00 0.00 1,650.00 1,650.00

90% Construction Documents-Kever McKee 750.00 75.00 0.00 562.50 562.50

90% Construction Documents 10,350.00 75.00 0.00 7,762.50 7,762.50

Design Documents-H2 Engineering 2,200.00 100.00 2,200.00 2,200.00 0.00

Design Documents- Kever McKee 1,313.00 100.00 0.00 1,313.00 1,313.00

Design Documents 3,722.00 100.00 3,722.00 3,722.00 0.00

Schematic Design - H2 Engineers 2,200.00 100.00 2,200.00 2,200.00 0.00

Schematic Design-Kever McKee 1,125.00 100.00 937.50 1,125.00 187.50

Schematic Design 8,865.00 100.00 8,865.00 8,865.00 0.00

Subtotal 55,500.00 52.97 17,924.50 29,400.00 11,475.50

Basic Services

Total 74,150.00 57.67 31,289.50 42,765.00 11,475.50

Description
Contract

Amount

Percent

Complete

Prior

Billed

Total

Billed

Current

Billed

Fitzgerald Collaborative Group, LLC
1401  Peachtree Street NE
Suite 200
Atlanta, GA 30309
850.350.3500

Purchase Order # 014731

Tallahassee Community College
Jenny Shuler
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304-2895

Invoice number 210224_0422
Date 04/27/2022

Project 210224  TCC - GHAZVINI SOLAR PANELS 
PATIO



Date 04/27/2022
Invoice number 210224_0422Tallahassee Community College

210224  TCC - GHAZVINI SOLAR PANELS PATIOProject

Tallahassee Community College Invoice number 210224_0422 Invoice date 04/27/2022

Page 2 of 2

Invoice total 11,475.50

210224_0422 04/27/2022 11,475.50 11,475.50

Total 11,475.50 11,475.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Aging Summary

Invoice Number Invoice Date Outstanding Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90 Over 120

We appreciate your business.  Please remit payment at your earliest convenience to 1401 Peachtree Street, Suite 200, Atlanta, GA 
30309.  If you have any questions please contact Judith 832.331.9418, or judith@fc-groupllc.com.



Tallahassee Community College Invoice number 20086_0422 Invoice date 04/28/2022

Page 1

Invoice total 366.25

20086_0422 04/28/2022 366.25 366.25

Total 366.25 366.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Aging Summary

Invoice Number Invoice Date Outstanding Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90 Over 120

We appreciate your business. Please remit payment at your earliest convenience to: DAG Architects Inc., 1223 Airport Road, Destin, 
FL 32541.  If you have any questions, please contact Gail at 850.337.6443 or gennis@dagarchitects.com.

Tasks 3 & 4 - Bidding & Negotiations & 
Construction Administration

2,930.00 87.50 2,197.50 2,563.75 366.25

Task 2 - 100% Construction Documents 3,530.00 100.00 3,530.00 3,530.00 0.00

Task 1 - 75% Construction Documents 4,790.00 100.00 4,790.00 4,790.00 0.00

Total 11,250.00 96.74 10,517.50 10,883.75 366.25

Description
Contract

Amount

Percent

Complete

Prior

Billed

Total

Billed

Current

Billed

Professional Architectural Services

PO- 013582

Tallahassee Community College
Don Herr
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304

Invoice number 20086_0422
Date 04/28/2022

Project 20086  TCC STAIRWELL DESIGN 
UPDATES



Tallahassee Community College Invoice number 21094_0422 Invoice date 04/28/2022

Page 1

Invoice total 1,725.00

21094_0422 04/28/2022 1,725.00 1,725.00

Total 1,725.00 1,725.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Aging Summary

Invoice Number Invoice Date Outstanding Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90 Over 120

We appreciate your business. Please remit payment at your earliest convenience to: DAG Architects Inc., 1223 Airport Road, Destin, 
FL 32541.  If you have any questions, please contact Gail at 850.337.6443 or gennis@dagarchitects.com.

Task 7 - Conclusion 1,933.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Task 6 - Master Plan & Graphics 39,900.00 9.02 3,075.00 3,600.00 525.00

Task 5 - Decision Themes 31,600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Task 4 - Planning Elements 163,200.00 1.72 1,600.00 2,800.00 1,200.00

Task 3 - Existing Conditions 54,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Task 2 - Executive Summary 69,400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Task 1 - Overview 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 362,033.00 1.77 4,675.00 6,400.00 1,725.00

Description
Contract

Amount

Percent

Complete

Prior

Billed

Total

Billed

Current

Billed

Professional Architectural Services

PHASE 1 - Site 6 (WEI)

PO-014617

Tallahassee Community College
Don Herr
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304

Invoice number 21094_0422
Date 04/28/2022

Project 21094  WEI MASTER PLAN UPDATE



Tallahassee Community College Invoice number 21114_0422 Invoice date 04/28/2022

Page 1

Invoice total 2,175.00

21114_0422 04/28/2022 2,175.00 2,175.00

Total 2,175.00 2,175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Aging Summary

Invoice Number Invoice Date Outstanding Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90 Over 120

We appreciate your business. Please remit payment at your earliest convenience to: DAG Architects Inc., 1223 Airport Road, Destin, 
FL 32541.  If you have any questions, please contact Gail at 850.337.6443 or gennis@dagarchitects.com.

Task 7 - Conclusion 1,815.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Task 6 - Master Plan & Graphics 30,825.00 6.93 1,362.50 2,137.50 775.00

Task 5 - Decision Themes 16,985.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Task 4 - Planning Elements 86,328.00 6.72 4,400.00 5,800.00 1,400.00

Task 3 - Existing Conditions 41,890.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Task 2 - Executive Summary 59,130.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Task 1 - Overview 1,825.00 100.00 1,825.00 1,825.00 0.00

Total 238,798.00 4.09 7,587.50 9,762.50 2,175.00

Description
Contract

Amount

Percent

Complete

Prior

Billed

Total

Billed

Current

Billed

Professional Architectural Services

PO-014772

Tallahassee Community College
Don Herr
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304

Invoice number 21114_0422
Date 04/28/2022

Project 21114  FPSI MASTERPLANNING



Tallahassee Community College Invoice number 21108_0422 Invoice date 04/28/2022

Page 1

Invoice total 9,350.00

21108_0422 04/28/2022 9,350.00 9,350.00

Total 9,350.00 9,350.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Aging Summary

Invoice Number Invoice Date Outstanding Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90 Over 120

We appreciate your business. Please remit payment at your earliest convenience to: DAG Architects Inc., 1223 Airport Road, Destin, 
FL 32541.  If you have any questions, please contact Gail at 850.337.6443 or gennis@dagarchitects.com.

Architectural Fees 47,680.00 16.36 7,650.00 7,800.00 150.00

KH Change Order 1-Additional Geotech & 
Permitting

47,600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

KH / EGS Geotechnical & Geophysical Services 64,200.00 75.27 48,325.00 48,325.00 0.00

KH Construction Phase Services 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

KH NWFWMD Permitting 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

KH Surveying Work 9,200.00 100.00 0.00 9,200.00 9,200.00

KH Construction Plans 60,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 253,680.00 25.75 55,975.00 65,325.00 9,350.00

Description
Contract

Amount

Percent

Complete

Prior

Billed

Total

Billed

Current

Billed

Professional Architectural Services

PHASE 1 - Site 6

PO-014436

Tallahassee Community College
Don Herr
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304

Invoice number 21108_0422
Date 04/28/2022

Project 21108  TCC WEI INFRASTRUCTURE 
EXTENSION


	Top
	1.	Minutes for April 18, 2022
	2.	Attorney Invoice
	Attorney Invoice
	Bryant Miller Olive Invoice 77766 March 2022 $300.00

	3.	Human Resource Report
	May Board Agenda 2022
	Board Report  for May 2022

	4.	Sponsored Programs  - Provider - May
	Sponsored Programs - Provider - May 2022

	5.	TCC Foundation Update
	Update Memo
	Fundraising Info for DBOT Meeting 4-30-22 Final

	6.	Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements with Private Schools
	2022-2023 TCC Private School Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement - Board Memo Template 
	2022-2023 TCC Private School Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements 

	7.	Laboratory/Course and Distance Learning Fees for 2022-2023
	2022-2023 TCC Laboratory & Course Fees - Board Template 
	2022-23 Laboratory & Course Fees Information

	8.	Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements County School Boards and Public Charter Schools
	2022-2023 TCC Public and Charter School Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement - Board Template
	2022-2023 TCC Public and Charter School Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements 

	9.	2021-2022 Equity Report Update
	Equity Report 2021-2022 - Board Agenda Item
	2021_EADA_Report
	Equity Report 2021-2022 - Executive Summary
	2021.2022_CollegeAnnualEquityUpdate_FinalBOT

	10.	Fund Analysis - April 2022
	Board Agenda April 2022 Fund Analysis
	April 2022 Fund Analysis

	11.	Construction Status Report
	Construction Status Memo Template_MAY2022
	CONSTRUCTION STATUS REPORT_NewTemplate_MAY2022

	12.	Architect Invoices
	Architect Memo Template_MAY2022
	ALW_20390.6.1 - Lifetime Sports Center Improvements_AE_invoice
	FCG_210208_TCC - Ghazvini_210208_0422_04-27-2022
	FCG_210224_TCC - Ghazvini_210224_0422_04-27-2022
	DAG Architects,_20086_TCC Stairwell D_20086_0422_04-28-2022
	DAG Architects,_21094_WEI Master Plan_21094_0422_04-28-2022
	DAG Architects,_21114_FPSI Masterplan_21114_0422_04-28-2022
	DAG Architects,_21108_TCC WEI Infrast_21108_0422_04-28-2022

	Bottom



